
 

 

 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

COMMITTEE  

 
 

Thursday, 26th September, 2013 
 

7.00 pm 
 

Town Hall, Watford 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Publication date: 18 September 2013 
 

CONTACT 
If you require further information or you would like a copy of this agenda in another format, 
e.g. large print, please contact Sandra Hancock in Democracy and Governance on 01923 
278377 or by email to legalanddemocratic@watford.gov.uk . 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
 
 
Welcome to this meeting.  We hope you find these notes useful. 
 
 
ACCESS 
 
Access to the Town Hall after 5.15 pm is via the entrance to the Customer Service Centre 
from the visitors’ car park. 
 
Visitors may park in the staff car park after 4.00 p.m. and before 7.00 a.m.  This is a Pay 
and Display car park; the current charge is £1.50 per visit. 
 
The Committee Rooms are on the first floor of the Town Hall and a lift is available. 
Induction loops are available in the Committee Rooms and the Council Chamber. 
 
 
FIRE/EMERGENCY INSTRUCTIONS 
 
In the event of a fire alarm sounding, vacate the building immediately following the 
instructions given by the Democratic Services Officer. 
 
 

• Do not use the lifts 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings 

• Go to the assembly point at the Pond and wait for further instructions 

• Do not re-enter the building until authorised to do so. 
 
 
MOBILE PHONES 
 
Please ensure that mobile phones are switched off before the start of the meeting. 
 
 



 

 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillor K Collett (Chair) 
Councillor A Khan (Vice-Chair) 
Councillors J Aron, N Bell, S Greenslade, K Hastrick, S Johnson, A Lovejoy and R Martins 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

PART A - OPEN TO THE PUBLIC 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP  

 

2. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (IF ANY)  
 

3. MINUTES  

 
 The minutes of the meeting held on 25 July 2013 to be submitted and signed. (All 

minutes are available on the Council’s website – www.watford.gov.uk/meetings) 
 
 

4. CALL-IN  

 
 To consider any Executive decisions which have been called in by the requisite 

number of Members. 
 
 

5. OUTSTANDING ACTIONS AND QUESTIONS (Pages 1 - 16) 

 
 The Scrutiny Committee is asked to review the outstanding actions and questions 

from previous meetings. 
 
 

6. UPDATE ON THE COUNCIL'S PERFORMANCE INDICATORS AND 
MEASURES - END OF QUARTER 1 (APRIL-JUNE) 2013/14 (Pages 17 - 30) 

 
 This report presents the latest update on the Council’s Performance Indicators as 

at the end of June (quarter 1).  The Scrutiny Committee is asked to review the 
performance measures. 
 
 

7. PREVIOUS REVIEW UPDATE: SERVICES FOR THE DECEASED (Pages 31 - 38) 

 
 The report sets out the Task Group’s original recommendations, the response 

from Cabinet, the previous updates to scrutiny and the latest information provided 
by the service. 
 
The Scrutiny Committee is asked to review the update and consider whether the 
recommendations have been completed. 
 
 
 



 

 

8. EXECUTIVE DECISION PROGRESS REPORT (Pages 39 - 46) 

 
 The Scrutiny Committee is asked to review the latest edition of the Executive 

Decision Progress Report and consider whether any further information is 
required. 
 
 

9. HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL'S HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  

 
 The next Health Scrutiny Committee is due to be held on Thursday 17 October 

2013. 
 
 

Scrutiny Panels and Task Groups 

10. WATFORD COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST TASK GROUP - FINAL REPORT 

(Pages 47 - 98) 
 
 This report asks Overview and Scrutiny Committee to review the conclusions and 

recommendations set out in the final draft report from the Watford Community 
Housing Trust Task Group. 
 
 

11. BUDGET PANEL  

 
 Since the last Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Budget Panel has met on the 

following occasions – 
 

• Wednesday 10 July 2013 

• Tuesday 10 September 2013 
 
The minutes are available on the Council’s website – 
www.watford.gov.uk/budgetscrutiny  
 
The Chair of Budget Panel to provide an update to the Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 

12. OUTSOURCED SERVICES SCRUTINY PANEL  

 
 Since the last Overview and Scrutiny Committee, Outsourced Services Scrutiny 

Panel met on the following occasion – 
 

• Tuesday 16 July 2013 
 
The minutes are available on the Council’s website - 
http://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=223  
 
The Chair of Outsourced Services Scrutiny Panel to provide an update to the 
Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 
 
 



 

 

13. COMMUNITY SAFETY PARTNERSHIP TASK GROUP  

 
 Since the last Overview and Scrutiny Committee, the Community Safety Task 

Group has met on the following occasion – 
 

• Tuesday 9 September 2013 
 
The minutes are available on the Council’s website - 
http://watford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CommitteeId=209  
 
The Chair of the Community Safety Partnership Task Group to provide an update 
to the Scrutiny Committee. 
 
 

14. DATES OF NEXT MEETINGS  

 
 • Thursday 24 October 2013 (For call-in only) 

• Thursday 28 November 2013  

• Thursday 19 December 2013 (For call-in only) 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Updated: September 2013   

Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Outstanding Actions and questions   
 
 

Action to be carried out Responsibility Committee 
Date 

Deadline Comments/officer 

Performance Report 

PI 
27 

Contact the Housing Service for 
future projections regarding CS13 
(KPI 6), the number of households 
living in temporary accommodation, 
including budgets 

Further update required in six 
months time. 

Partnerships and 
Performance 
Section Head  

21 November 
2012 
 
 
 

26 March 2013  

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

See Appendix 1 attached to this update 

PI 
30 

The latest edition of Absence News 
to be circulated to the Scrutiny 
Committee. 

Committee and 
Scrutiny Officer  

27 June 2013   Emailed to the Scrutiny Committee on 
17 July 2013. 

PI 
31 

Further information required on 
graffiti – 

a)  Is graffiti removal that is reported 
on private property included in the 
performance measure? 

Partnerships and 
Performance 
Section Head  

27 June 2013  September 
2013  

See Appendix 2 attached to this update 

PI 
32 

Are Councillors’ complaints which 
they report on behalf of residents 
included in the performance 
measures? 

Partnerships and 
Performance 
Section Head  

27 June 2013  September 
2013  

Complaints reported on behalf of 
residents are logged by the Council 
provided the complaint is in line with 
the Council's Complaints Policy. 

A
genda Item

 5

P
age 1



Updated: September 2013   

Action to be carried out Responsibility Committee 
Date 

Deadline Comments/officer 

Housing Benefit update 

HB 
2 

Further update to be provided to the 
Scrutiny Committee 

Head of 
Revenues and 
Benefits  

 

 

21 November 
2012 

 

27 June 2013 

May/June 
2013 

 

January 2014 

Included on agenda for 27 June 2013  
 

 

Added to rolling work programme 

Affordable Housing Review 

AHR
1 

Recommendation 1 – Affordable 
Housing threshold – The status of 
the Core Strategy to be reviewed in 
12 months. 

The original recommendation was – 

“ That the reduction of the 
affordable housing threshold from 
15 units to 10 units proposed by the 
Planning Policy Advisory Group be 
implemented and be reviewed after 
18 months to see if it has resulted 
in additional affordable homes or 
deterred some developers from 
investing in Watford.” 

Further update to be provided in six 
months time. 

OSC Committee 26 July 2011 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

26 March 2013  

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

September 
2013 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See Appendix 3 attached to this update 

P
age 2



Updated: September 2013   

Action to be carried out Responsibility Committee 
Date 

Deadline Comments/officer 

AHR 
7 

Review the first and second 
quarters’ performance of the new 
Nomination Policy 

Committee and 
Scrutiny Officer/ 
Housing Section 
Head  

19 September 
2012 

November 
2013 

Revised to 
March 2014 

Added to rolling work programme 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
agreed to defer this item as the policy 
has yet to be approved by Cabinet.  

AHR 
8 

Recommendation 2 – piecemeal 
developments and Section 106 
obligations – to be further reviewed 
in two year’s time 

Committee and 
Scrutiny Officer  

21 November 
2012 

November 
2014  

Added to rolling work programme 

P
age 3



Updated: September 2013   

Action to be carried out Responsibility Committee 
Date 

Deadline Comments/officer 

AHR 
9 

Check the affordable housing 
threshold for Three Rivers District 
Council 

Committee and 
Scrutiny Officer  

27 June 2013  September 
2013  

The following information was emailed 
to Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
on 23 July 2013 –  

The relevant information was available 
in the Council’s Core Strategy. 

"In order to increase the provision of 
affordable homes in the District and 
meet local housing need as informed 
by the Strategic Housing Market 
Assessment, the Council will:  

a) In view of the identified and pressing 
need for affordable housing in the 
District, seek an overall provision of 
around 45% of all new housing as 
affordable housing, incorporating a mix 
of tenures. All new development 
resulting in a net gain of one or more 
dwellings will be expected to contribute 
to the provision of affordable housing" 

The full policy, CP4, is available online 
http://www.threerivers.gov.uk/GetReso
urce.aspx?file=Core%20Strategy%20A
dopted%2017%20Oct%202011.pdf 
(page 38 of the document or page 44 of 
the whole file.) 

 

 

P
age 4



Updated: September 2013   

Action to be carried out Responsibility Committee 
Date 

Deadline Comments/officer 

Work Programme and Task Groups 

WP 
8 

Community Safety Partnership 
Task Group to be asked to review 
the provision of drug treatment in 
the borough 

Committee and 
Scrutiny Officer 
and Committee 
and Scrutiny 
Support Officer  

24 November 
2011  

1 December 
2011  
 
 

Referred to the Committee and 
Scrutiny Support Officer supporting the 
Community Safety Partnership Task 
Group. 

An all-Member briefing is being 
arranged to cover this topic.  The 
potential date is Wednesday 27 
November 2013. 

WP 
16 

Build into Overview’s agenda 
updates from the Chairs of Budget 
Panel, Outsourced Services 
Scrutiny Panel and Community 
Safety Partnership Task Group 

Committee and 
Scrutiny Officer  

27 June 2013  September 
2013  

Added to the agenda with effect from 
September 2013.  Please see the 
individual items elsewhere on this 
agenda. 

WP
17 

Provide all Members of Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee with paper 
copies of minutes for Budget Panel, 
Outsourced Services Scrutiny 
Panel and Community Safety 
Partnership Task Group 

Committee and 
Scrutiny Officer  

27 June 2013  September 
2013  

Circulated separately to the Scrutiny 
Committee from the agenda.   

The information is also available on the 
Council’s website – 
www.watford.gov.uk/meetings  

Hospital Parking Charges Task Group 

HP 
9 

Circulate details of the new car park 
payment structure to the Scrutiny 
Committee once it has been 
received from West Herts Hospitals 
NHS Trust. 

Committee and 
Scrutiny Officer  

27 June 2013   West Herts Hospitals NHS Trust’s 
press release circulated to the Scrutiny 
Committee on 23 July 2013. 

P
age 5



Updated: September 2013   

Action to be carried out Responsibility Committee 
Date 

Deadline Comments/officer 

Previous Reviews Updates 

PR 
2 

Services for the Deceased 

Outstanding recommendations to 
be further reviewed 

Committee and 
Scrutiny Officer  

25 July 2012  September 
2013 

(Originally 
February 
2013) 

Included on this agenda 

 

 

PR 
6 

3-year Grant Funding Programme 
Review – Watford Muslim 
Community Project 

The CAB evaluation into the 
outreach service to be shared with 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

Commissioning 
Manager 

25 July 2013  November 
2013  

Added to rolling work programme 

PR 
7 

3-year Grant Funding Programme 
Review – Watford Muslim 
Community Project 

Further update to be provided in 
November. 

Commissioning 
Manager 

25 July 2013  November 
2013  

Added to rolling work programme 

PR 
8 

Voluntary and Commissioning 
Sector Commissioning Framework 

Officers to ensure the Small Grants 
Fund is given more publicity.   

Officers to provide Councillors with 
additional posters and a copy of the 
application form. 

Commissioning 
Manager 

25 July 2013  September 
2013  

Completed 

P
age 6



Updated: September 2013   

Action to be carried out Responsibility Committee 
Date 

Deadline Comments/officer 

PR 
9 

Voluntary and Commissioning 
Sector Commissioning Framework 

A further review of the Small Grants 
Fund to be carried out in one year. 

Commissioning 
Manager 

25 July 2013  July 2014 Added to rolling work programme 

Executive Decision Progress Report 

ED 
1 

Cabinet decision 3 April 2013 – 
Shared Services software upgrade 
– has it happened and if so was it 
on budget? 

Committee and 
Scrutiny Officer  

27 June 2013  September 
2013  

On 19 July 2013, the Head of 
Revenues and Benefits reported that 
the software had been purchased, on 
budget, and was being installed by ICT. 

ED 
2 

Cabinet decision 17 September 
2012 and Council 17 October 2012 
– what has been the take up of the 
scheme and how many in Watford? 

Committee and 
Scrutiny Officer  

27 June 2013  September 
2013  

See Appendix 4 attached to this update 

HCC Health Scrutiny Committee 

HSC 
1 

Healthwatch Stakeholder Panels – 
find details of the Panel for Watford   

Committee and 
Scrutiny Officer  

27 June 2013  September 
2013  

Information was circulated to 
Councillors on 23 July 2013. 

HSC 
2 

Links to the agendas and minutes 
for the County’s Health Scrutiny 
Committee to be circulated to 
Overview as they become 
available. 

Committee and 
Scrutiny Officer  

27 June 2013  September 
2013  

The relevant links will be circulated to 
the Scrutiny Committee as they are 
made available. 

The Health Scrutiny Committee can be 
found on the County Council’s website 
- http://www.hertsdirect.org/your-
council/civic_calendar/healthscrut/  

P
age 7



Updated: September 2013   

Action to be carried out Responsibility Committee 
Date 

Deadline Comments/officer 

Management of Disabled Parking Bays Task Group 

DPB 
1 

Recommendation 5 to be reworded 
to ensure it is clear that it is 
referring to the marked disabled 
parking bays and not all parking 
related problems. 

Committee and 
Scrutiny Officer  

27 June 2013  September 
2013 

The amended recommendation has 
been included in the final report. 

DPB 
2 

Final report to be submitted to 
Cabinet in September 

Committee and 
Scrutiny Officer  

27 June 2013  October 2013  

(previously 
September) 

The Cabinet meeting due to take place 
in September was cancelled.  The Task 
Group’s final report will be presented to 
Cabinet in October. 

DPB 
3 

Cabinet’s response to be reported 
to Overview at its next available 
meeting. 

Committee and 
Scrutiny Officer  

27 June 2013  November 
2013  

(previously 
September) 

As the report will not be presented to 
Cabinet on October, the response will 
be presented to Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee in November. 

Watford Community Housing Trust Task Group 

HT 
1 

Arrange a meeting prior to the 
Housing Trust’s visit. 

Committee and 
Scrutiny Support 
Officer  

27 June 2013  July 2013  This took place. 

HT 
2 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
insists that the Chief Executive of 
Watford Community Housing Trust 
attends the meeting to answer 
questions when the Trust is invited 

Committee and 
Scrutiny Officer 
and Committee 
and Scrutiny 
Support Officer  

27 June 2013  August 2013  Watford Community Housing Trust’s 
Chief Executive attended the Task 
Group. 

 

P
age 8



Appendix 1 

Update on request for information from previous meeting –  
 
Action: Contact the Housing Service for future projections regarding CS13 (KPI 6) – the 
number of households living in temporary accommodation, including budgets 
 
 
Response from the Housing Section Head  
 
At 30 August 2013, there were 105 households in temporary accommodation.   This 
compares to 103 at the end of March 2013.  
 
We are making more use of nightly lets as an alternative to B&B so that households can 
benefit from self contained accommodation and can prepare food.   
 
At the end of August the 105 households accommodated included 12 households in 
nightly lets and 6 in B&B accommodation.  
 
The situation regarding homelessness projections remains complex, as explained in the 
briefing note submitted in March 2013.   However, we have set guideline figures to inform 
our quarterly monitoring going forward as below: 
 
Qu 2. 115 households 
Qu 3. 120 households  
Qu. 4 132 households. 
 
Our revised Homelessness Strategy will be submitted to Cabinet in October 2013 and 
includes actions to increase the supply of temporary accommodation and longer term 
accommodation in the private rented sector.   
 
In addition to our ongoing preventative casework, the supply side issues which are 
monitored include: 
 

• Newbuild pipeline projection of 133 units in 2013/14 compared to 184 last year  
• 10 private sector properties made available in Quarter 1 compared to 53 last year.  

New HomeLet Scheme launched in July 2013 with a target of increasing access to 
the private rented sector.   

  
In terms of budget, hostels and regular temporary accommodation are self financing 
through rents.  A proportion of B&B charges are recouped through Housing Benefit and 
client contribution.  For 2013/14 the service has agreed a B&B gross budget of £150,890 
which is allowing for the previous peak demand.  While the current prediction is that this 
gross spend may be exceeded, there will be a  corresponding increase in monies which 
can be recouped which means that the net budget spend should not be exceeded.  
Current projection is for a net spend of £70,000 - £80,000.  
 
 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 2 
 
Question: Is graffiti removal that is reported on private property included in the 
performance measure NI 195? 
 
Response from Street Cleansing Section Head, Veolia Environmental Services (UK) 
Ltd  
 
As stated in the DEFRA guidance (which established how this performance measure 
should be collected and reported), each transect grading includes all graffiti visible from 
any part of the transect no matter how distant or on whose land or property it is on, e.g. 
inaccessible graffiti high up on a railway viaduct would still affect the grade given.  Where 
the methodology sometimes results in several transects being surveyed in close proximity 
to one another, such as occurs within Main Retail and Commercial lands use, then a single 
item of graffiti can occasionally affect the grading of several nearby transects. For 
example, any graffiti  present on the corner of High Street/Kings Rd, visible as grade C in 
the actual transect and Grade C and B- from two other nearby surveyed transects would 
together then affect the overall quarterly graffiti result by 1.1 % and,  at a more detailed 
level, report as 10% of the Town Centre’s Main Retail and Commercial transects being 
adversely affected during that period.  
  
The same principle applies when grading for the presence of fly posters. 
 
Link to relevant section of DEFRA’s guidance: http://cleanliness-
indicator.defra.gov.uk/manual.aspx?section=10#1  
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 

AHR1 – Affordable Housing Threshold 
 
Planning Policy’s Response –  

The Local Plan Core Strategy was adopted on 30 January 2013.  This 
means that the Core Strategy now forms part of the development plan and will 
be used in determining planning applications. 

From June 2010, the policy on affordable housing used a threshold of 15 or 
more units at a rate of 35%.  Today however, post the Core Strategy 
adoption, the Council is seeking 35% affordable housing on major schemes of 
10 or more units.  Proportions of the affordable housing are now seeking 20% 
social rent; 65% affordable rent; and 15% shared ownership/intermediate 
housing. 
 
The new Policy HS3 has only been applied since the Inspector’s report on the 
Core Strategy at the end of September 2012.  Up until this point it was not 
considered to be a material consideration.  Therefore Policy HS3 has only 
been used for under a year and in that period the level of major applications 
(over 10 units) has been minimal. 
 
The figures from the draft Annual Monitoring Report 2013 shows that there 
have been a total of 184 affordable homes delivered during 2012/13, across 5 
sites.  This was based on the previous threshold of 15 units.   
 
In addition to 350 affordable homes with planning permission there are also 
currently (as at 31 March 2013) another 916 affordable homes anticipated to 
come forward, some of which have been identified through pre-application 
discussions or form part of identified development schemes, such as Watford 
Junction. 
 
This makes a current total of 1266 affordable homes anticipated to come 
forward over the period 2012/13 to 2030/31, 31% of the estimated total 4073 
housing commitments outstanding. 
 
There is no apparent evidence that the current policy approach is deterring 
residential investment in Watford. 

Page 13



Page 14

This page is intentionally left blank



Member Scheme Applications Offers Completions

Herts CC Lloyds 17 5 8

Herts CC Leeds 2 1 1

Broxbourne Lloyds 4 0 3

Dacorum Lloyds 21 8 10

Dacorum Leeds 1 1 0

Hertsmere Lloyds 1 1 0

North Herts Lloyds 17 7 6

North Herts Leeds 2 1 1

Stevenage Lloyds 33 6 21

Stevenage Leeds 3 0 2

Three Rivers Leeds 0 0 0

Watford Leeds 1 0 1

East Herts Lloyds 15 3 4

Totals 117 33 57

SECTOR - Hertfordshire County Council - LAMS Activity to 30 June 2013

Appendix 4

Page 15



Page 16

This page is intentionally left blank



  

*PART A 
 

 

  

 
 

Report to: Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date of meeting: 26 September 2013 

Report of: Partnerships and Performance Section Head 

Title: Update on the council’s performance indicators and measures – end 
of quarter 1 (April - June) 2013/14 

 
1.0 SUMMARY 

 
1.1 Watford BC’s Corporate Plan 2013-17 sets out the council’s priority areas for 

delivery over the next four years.  These are supported by a suite of 
performance measures that help identify where performance is meeting or 
exceeding targets or where it is below target.  In these later cases, 
consideration needs to be given to the reasons for under-performance and 
to steps that might support improvement. 
 

1.2 Overview and Scrutiny Committee scrutinises and comments on the 
performance of these indicators on a quarterly basis. This report, therefore, 
presents an update on the council’s performance indicators as at the end of 
year (quarter 1) 2013/14 (April - June).  
 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

2.1 Note and comment on the performance of the council’s performance measures 
for 2013/14 at the end of quarter 1. 
 

2.2 Note that the majority of the performance measures for Environmental Services 
will be reported to Outsourced Scrutiny Panel from quarter 2. 
 

2.3 Note (as outlined in Appendix A) the new service areas which will be reporting 
the performance measures from quarter 2, following the implementation of the 
new council structure from 1 July 2013. 

 
 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: 
For further information on this report please contact: 
Kathryn Robson, Partnerships and Performance Section Head  
telephone extension: 8077 email: kathryn.robson@watford.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 6

Page 17



  

 
3.0 Background information  

 Watford Borough Council’s Corporate Plan 2013-17 sets out a medium term 
delivery plan of the council’s work and areas for development. These are then 
translated into projects and areas of work for services to deliver and are 
reflected in individual service plans.  These are regularly monitored for 
progress and achievement. 
 
To support the delivery of these projects and areas of work, the council also 
identifies a number of performance measures or indicators, which provide 
regular information on progress against agreed targets. 
 
For 2013/14, these are set out in Appendix A. 
 
As discussed at the Overview and Scrutiny Committee in June 2013, a 
number of these indicators will no longer be reported to Committee from 
quarter 2 – specifically those associated with Environmental Services.  From 
1 July 2013, these areas of work are now managed by Veolia Watford and so 
related performance measures will be scrutinised by Outsourced Services 
Scrutiny Panel from quarter 2. 
 
Also from 1 July 2013, the council implemented a new organisational 
structure.  This does not impact on the performance measures being 
collected and reported but there are changes to the service areas responsible 
for reporting.  Appendix A indicates which service area will be reporting which 
performance measures from quarter 2. 
 

3.1 End of year (quarter 1) 2013/14 performance report overview 

 

3.1.1 Watford BC - Measures Of Performance – Progress report at the end of 
quarter 41 2013/14 (April - June) is attached as Appendix A.  Those 
performance measures that are not performing against target by 10% or more 

are highlighted with a !. This just relates to under performance.  Where a 

measure is performing well (on or above target) it is highlighted with a ☺ 

even if this is over 10%. 

 

Areas to note from the progress report: 

 

� Targets for Environmental Services performance measures have been 
carried forward from 2012/13 to reflect that performance levels are 
expected to be maintained in the first year of the contract with Veolia 
 

� Levels of graffiti and fly positing have increased since last quarter.  Fly 
posting levels in particular have increased as a result of specific events 
being illegally advertised  
 

� Housing have amended the performance indicator in relation to bed and 
breakfast to reflect the work the service is doing to provide people with 
better options than traditional bed and breakfast accommodation 

Page 18



  

 

� Planning performance remains strong 
 

� Benefits has consolidated its improved performance since last year – two 
indicators are now within target, with the third (change of circumstances) 
showing continued improvement 
 

� The council sickness absence figures for quarter 1 includes performance 
for service areas now outsourced to Veolia Watford.  The council has 
reviewed its target for sickness absence for the organisation following the 
outsourcing to Veolia Watford and it will be 5 working days lost per 
employee from 1 July 2013 
 

� The council is working with services to improve its performance relating to 
complaint handling to ensure that service standards are met across all 
service areas 
 

 
 

4.0 IMPLICATIONS. 

4.1 Financial 

4.1.1 There are no financial implications within this report. 
 

4.2 Legal Issues (Monitoring Officer) 

4.2.1 The Head of Legal and Property Services comments that there are no legal 
implications within this report.   

 

Appendices 

 

Appendix A – Watford BC - Measures of Performance – Progress report as of 
  end of quarter 1 2013/14 
 
 

Background papers: 

� Corporate Plan 2013-17 

Page 19



Page 20

This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix A - Watford BC - Measures Of Performance – Progress report as of quarter 1 - 2013/14 

 

1 
1
  Variance: difference between actual performance and profile for quarter as a percentage of the profile. 

WATFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL – MEASURES OF PERFORMANCE 
 

April – June 2013 (Quarter 1) 2013/14  
 
Ref Measure Target 

for Q1 
2013/14 

Actual 
at end of 

Q1 
2013/14 

% 
variance

1
 
☺ 

� 

! 

Trend 
since 
last 

period 
(Q4 
2013/ 
14) 

Trend 
since 
last 
year 
(2012/ 
13) 

Service  
Lead 

Comments 

Environmental Services 
THOSE PERFORMANCE MEASURES NOT REPORTED TO OUSTOURCED SERVICES SCRUTINY PANEL WILL BE REPORTED BY COMMUNITY 
AND CUSTOMER SERVICES 
 
ES1 
KPI7 

CO2 reductions from local 
authority operations 
 

27%  - - - - - Environmental 
Services 

 

ES2 
KPI2 
 

Residual household waste per 
household 
 

127.39kg 
 

128.07kg 0.5% � 
 

↓ ↓ 
Environmental 

Services 
This measure of 
performance will be 
reported Veolia from Q2. 

ES3 
KPI3 
 
 

Household waste recycled and 
composted 
 

43.66% 41.88% 4.1% � 
 

↓ ↑ 
Environmental 

Services 
This measure of 
performance will be 
reported Veolia from Q2. 

ES9 Percentage of the total 
tonnage of household waste 
arising which have been 
recycled 
 
 

16.09% 
 

14.62%  9.1% � 
 

↓ ↓ 
Environmental 

Services 
This measure of 
performance will be 
reported Veolia from Q2. 

ES10 Percentage of waste sent for 
composting including waste 
which has been treated 
through a process of 
anaerobic digestion 
 

26.77% 27.26% 
 

1.8% ☺ 
 

↑ ↓ 
Environmental 

Services 
This measure of 
performance will be 
reported Veolia from Q2. 

P
age 21



Appendix A - Watford BC - Measures Of Performance – Progress report as of quarter 1 - 2013/14 

 

2 
1
  Variance: difference between actual performance and profile for quarter as a percentage of the profile. 

Ref Measure Target 
for Q1 
2013/14 

Actual 
at end of 

Q1 
2013/14 

% 
variance

1
 
☺ 

� 

! 

Trend 
since 
last 

period 
(Q4 
2013/ 
14) 

Trend 
since 
last 
year 
(2012/ 
13) 

Service  
Lead 

Comments 

ES4 
KPI4i 
 

Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness 
(levels of litter) 
 

5% 1.78% 64% ☺ 
 

↑ ↓ 
Environmental 

Services 
This measure of 
performance will be 
reported Veolia from Q2. 

ES5 
KPI4ii 
 

Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness 
(levels of detritus) 
 

6% 3.49% 41% ☺ 
 

↑ ↑ 
Environmental 

Services 
This measure of 
performance will be 
reported Veolia from Q2. 

ES6 
KPI4iii 
 

Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness 
(levels of graffiti)  
 

3% 3.11% 3.7% � 
 

↓ ↑ 
Environmental 

Services 
This measure of 
performance will be 
reported Veolia from Q2. 

ES7 Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness 
(levels of fly posting) 
 

0.3% 0.67% 123% ! ↓ ↓ 
Environmental 

Services 
This measure of 
performance will be 
reported Veolia from Q2. 

ES8 Improved street and 
environmental cleanliness 
(levels of fly tipping) 
 

Effective N/A - ☺ 
 

- 
↑ 

Environmental 
Services 

 

P
age 22



Appendix A - Watford BC - Measures Of Performance – Progress report as of quarter 1 - 2013/14 

 

3 
1
  Variance: difference between actual performance and profile for quarter as a percentage of the profile. 

 

Ref Measure Target 
for Q1 
2013/14 

Actual 
at end of 

Q1 
2013/14 

% 
variance

1
 
☺ 

� 

! 

Trend 
since 
last 

period 
(Q4 
2013/ 
14) 

Trend 
since 

last year 
(2012/ 
13) 

Service  
Lead 

Comments 

Community Services  
FROM QUARTER 2 – HOUSING INDICATORS WILL BE REPORTED BY COMMUNITY & CUSTOMER SERVICES 
 
CS12 
KPI5 
 

Affordable homes on identified 
sites 
 

133  
for the 
year 

 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Community 
Services 

Monitored every second 
quarter  
 
184 in total 2012/13 
For 2013/14 anticipating: 
St Albans Road (1) 10 
affordable rent, 4 shared 
ownership  
Leggatts 4 social rent, 24 
shared ownership  
St Albans Road (2) 20 
affordable rent, 8 intermediate 
rent  
Upton Road 18 affordable rent, 
5 shared ownership  
Gammons Farm 14 affordable 
rent 
Croxley View 6 social rent, 10 
affordable rent   
Total 10 x social, 72 x 
affordable, 43 shared 
ownership, 8 intermediate 
 
 
 
 

P
age 23



Appendix A - Watford BC - Measures Of Performance – Progress report as of quarter 1 - 2013/14 

 

4 
1
  Variance: difference between actual performance and profile for quarter as a percentage of the profile. 

Ref Measure Target 
for Q1 
2013/14 

Actual 
at end of 

Q1 
2013/14 

% 
variance

1
 
☺ 

� 

! 

Trend 
since 
last 

period 
(Q4 
2013/ 
14) 

Trend 
since 

last year 
(2012/ 
13) 

Service  
Lead 

Comments 

CS13 
KPI6 
 

Number of households living in 
temporary accommodation 
 

103 105 1.9 � ↓ ↓ 
Community 

Services 
 

Last year 189 decisions of 
whom 54% equivalent were 
accommodated at year end. 
Quarter 1 this year 61 
decisions, pointing to an 
increase.  Fewer new build 
expected, impact of Welfare 
Reform beginning to be seen, 
impact of changes to 
nomination policy 
unpredictable.  
 
Our baseline of temporary 
accommodation provision is 59 
hostel rooms, 12 self 
contained properties and a 
further 13 in an arrangement 
with Paradigm Housing which 
is reviewed each year = 84 
units.    Additional units are 
sourced through short term 
arrangements with registered 
providers (e.g. awaiting 
redevelopment) or nightly 
lets/B&B.  
 

CS15 The number of people 
sleeping rough on a single 
night within the area of the 
local authority 
 
 

10  N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Community 
Services 

Estimate to be submitted once 
a year to CLG in December  
 

P
age 24



Appendix A - Watford BC - Measures Of Performance – Progress report as of quarter 1 - 2013/14 

 

5 
1
  Variance: difference between actual performance and profile for quarter as a percentage of the profile. 

Ref Measure Target 
for Q1 
2013/14 

Actual 
at end of 

Q1 
2013/14 

% 
variance

1
 
☺ 

� 

! 

Trend 
since 
last 

period 
(Q4 
2013/ 
14) 

Trend 
since 

last year 
(2012/ 
13) 

Service  
Lead 

Comments 

CS16 Number of households who 
considered themselves as 
homeless, who approached 
the local authority’s housing 
advice service(s), and for who 
housing advice casework 
intervention resolved their 
situation  
 

32 32 0 ☺ 
 

↓ ↓ 
Community 

Services 
Continuing difficulty in 
accessing private rented 
sector has an adverse impact 
on the prevention figure  
 

CS16 Number of private sector units 
secured for use under Homelet  
 

10 10 0 ☺ 
 

N/A N/A Community 
Services 

Homelet launched on 1 July 
2013 to offer a new range of 
incentives to private sector 
landlords.  Continuing 
procurement activity by other 
authorities is likely to have an 
adverse impact on this figure, 
as is the implementation of 
welfare reform.   
 

CS17 The number of households in 
bed and breakfast 
accommodation and nightly 
lets who are pregnant/with 
dependent children 
 

15 
B&B 

4 
Nightly 

lets 
 

13 
B&B  

6 
Nightly 

lets 

0 ☺ 
 

N/A 
 

N/A 
 

Community 
Services 

 

Aim is to reduce B&B which 
will necessitate an increase in 
nightly lets.  These units are 
slightly higher cost but offer 
better facilities to households 
e.g. the ability to prepare and 
cook food as they are self 
contained.   
 

19  
in total 

19 
in total  

 

 

 

P
age 25



Appendix A - Watford BC - Measures Of Performance – Progress report as of quarter 1 - 2013/14 

 

6 
1
  Variance: difference between actual performance and profile for quarter as a percentage of the profile. 

 

Ref Measure Target 
for Q1 
2013/14 

Actual 
at end of 

Q1 
2013/14 

% 
variance

1
 
☺ 

� 

! 

Trend 
since 
last 

period 
(Q4 
2013/ 
14) 

Trend 
since 

last year 
(2012/ 
13) 

Service  
Lead 

Comments 

Planning  
FROM QUARTER 2 – PLANNING  INDICATORS WILL BE REPORTED BY REGENERATION AND DEVELOPMENT 
 
PL1 Processing of planning 

applications as measured 
against targets for ‘major’ 
applications (% determined 
within 13 weeks) 
 
 

85% 33% 61.1% ! 
 

↓ ↓ 
Planning Only three major applications 

for determination in Q1. One 
application delayed because of 
a requirement to advertise in 
Watford Observer; one 
application held up because of 
delays by third parties in 
completing a s.106 planning 
obligation 

PL2 Processing of planning 
applications as measured 
against targets for ‘minor’ 
applications (% determined 
within 8 weeks) 
 

90% 100% 11.1% ☺ 
 

↑ ↓ 
Planning  

PL3 Processing of planning 
applications as measured 
against targets for ‘other’ 
applications (% determined 
within 8 weeks) 

90% 100% 11.1% ☺ 
 

↑ ↔ Planning  

PL4 Planning appeals allowed - 22.22% 
(2 out of 

9) 
 

- - - - 
 
 

Planning  

 

 

 

P
age 26



Appendix A - Watford BC - Measures Of Performance – Progress report as of quarter 1 - 2013/14 

 

7 
1
  Variance: difference between actual performance and profile for quarter as a percentage of the profile. 

 

 

 

Ref Measure Target 
for Q1 
2013/14 

Actual 
at end of 

Q1 
2013/14 

% 
variance

1
 
☺ 

� 

! 

Trend 
since 
last 

period 
(Q4 
2013/ 
14) 

Trend 
since 

last year 
(2012/ 
13) 

Service  
Lead 

Comments 

Legal and Property Services  
FROM QUARTER 2 – LEGAL AND PROPERTY  INDICATORS WILL BE REPORTED BY DEMOCRACY AND GOVERNANCE 
 
LP5 Voter registration  

 
96% N/A N/A  N/A

  

N/A  N/A  Legal and 
Property 
services 

This is an annual indicator so 
only reported in Quarter 3. 
. 
 

 

 

Ref Measure Target 
for Q1 
2013/14 

Actual 
at end of 

Q1 
2013/14 

% 
variance

1
 
☺ 

� 

! 

Trend 
since 
last 

period 
(Q4 
2013/ 
14) 

Trend 
since 

last year 
(2012/ 
13) 

Service  
Lead 

Comments 

Human Resources 
HR1 
KPI 

Sickness absence (working 
days lost) 
 

1.63 days 1.94 days 19% ! ↓ ↑ 
Human 

Resources 
Figures pre-outsourcing. New 
target rate of 5 days for 
Watford BC  to take effect from 
1st July 2013 will reduce target 
to 1.25 . 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 27



Appendix A - Watford BC - Measures Of Performance – Progress report as of quarter 1 - 2013/14 

 

8 
1
  Variance: difference between actual performance and profile for quarter as a percentage of the profile. 

Ref Measure Target 
for Q1 
2013/14 

Actual 
at end of 

Q1 
2013/14 

% 
variance

1
 
☺ 

� 

! 

Trend 
since 
last 

period 
(Q4 
2013/ 
14) 

Trend 
since 

last year 
(2012/ 
13) 

Service  
Lead 

Comments 

Revenues and Benefits 

RB1 
KPI1i 
 

Av time to process benefits 
claims 
 

22 
days 

19.49 
days 

45% ☺ ↑ ↑ 
Revenues 

and Benefits 
Improving performance  

RB2 
KPI1ii 
 

Av time to process change of 
circs 
 

15 
days 

45.64 
days 

204% ! ↓ ↑ 
Revenues 

and Benefits 
Remnants of ATLAS cases still 
impacting. Performance to end 
of July 2013 @ 29 days so 
performance improving. 
 

RB3 New claims – average time to 
process from receipt of all 
information 

15 
days 

11.86 
days 20.9% ☺ ↑ ↑ 

Revenues 
and Benefits 

Improving performance  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 28



Appendix A - Watford BC - Measures Of Performance – Progress report as of quarter 1 - 2013/14 

 

9 
1
  Variance: difference between actual performance and profile for quarter as a percentage of the profile. 

Ref Measure Target 
for Q1 
2013/14 

Actual 
at end of 

Q1 
2013/14 

% 
variance

1
 
☺ 

� 

! 

Trend 
since 
last 

period 
(Q4 
2013/ 
14) 

Trend 
since 

last year 
(2012/ 
13) 

Service  
Lead 

Comments 

Corporate 
FROM QUARTER 2 – CORPORATE  INDICATORS WILL BE REPORTED BY COMMUNITY & CUSTOMER SERVICES 
 
Co1 CSC service levels - 80% calls 

answered in 20 secs 
 

80% calls 
answered 

in 20 
seconds 

58% 27% ! ↑ ↓ 
Corporate Improvement from August 

when voice activated 
telephony is implemented. 
 

Co2 CSC service levels - 95% all 
calls answered 
 

95% all 
calls 

answered 
 

95% 0% ☺ ↑ ↓ 
Corporate  

Co3 Calls resolved at first point of 
contact 
 

90% 98.64 % 
excl 

transfers 
 

23% 
 

 

☺ 
 

 

↓ 

 

↑ 

 

Corporate  

Co4 Complaints resolved  at stage 
one 
 
 

90% 43% 49% ! 
 
 

↑ 

 

↓ 
Corporate Working with services to 

improve performance. 

Co5 % of stage 1 complaints 
resolved within 10 days 
 
 

80% 36% 55% ! ↑ 

 

n/a Corporate Working with services to 
improve performance. 

 
 
Key to performance against target 
 

☺   on target or above target 

� not on target but there is no cause for concern at this stage. 

P
age 29



Appendix A - Watford BC - Measures Of Performance – Progress report as of quarter 1 - 2013/14 

 

10 
1
  Variance: difference between actual performance and profile for quarter as a percentage of the profile. 

 ! not on target/ more than 10% variance and is a cause for concern. 

P
age 30



Review Update: Services for the Deceased 
 

Review:  Services for the Deceased 

Committee/Task Group:  Policy Development Task Group 

Committee/Task Group Chair: Councillor Mark Watkin 

Final report published:  9 November 2010 

Cabinet/Executive response: 13 December 2010  

Scrutiny consideration of response: Policy Development Scrutiny Committee 18 January and 22 February 2011 

 

Recommendation:  That the Council continues to provide a wide range of services for the deceased, even though it 
only has a statutory responsibility to provide for the burial and cremation of any deceased 
person without relatives or other means of arranging burials or cremation.  This is subject to our 
financial viability recommendation. 

Cabinet response: We recognise the importance of continuing to provide a wide range of services for the deceased and 
welcome your comments on financial viability. 

Previous updates to 
scrutiny: 

18 January and 22 February 2011 

The scrutiny committee received an action plan which was then discussed at the second meeting.  It 
was agreed to review the actions within a year. 

 

2 February and 25 July 2012 

No further updates 

Latest update: No further updates 

 

A
genda Item

 7

P
age 31



 

Recommendation:  That the Council should aim to make cemeteries self-financing in the next five years. 

Cabinet response: Recommendations have been put forward under the Council’s service prioritisation programme to make 
the cemetery closer to self-financing. 

 

Previous updates to 
scrutiny: 

2 February 2012 

Burial fees increased by 100% following service prioritisation. 

 

25 July 2012 

As part of the potential outsourcing of the Parks and Open Spaces Service, this has been overtaken by 
ongoing events with the possibility of  

a) the West Herts Crematorium  managing the Cemeteries service within P&OS. A report has already 
been taken to their Board with further feedback required mid August relating to fees and charges which 
may need to be aligned with other Herts authorities who are partners at the Crem. 

 b) the possibility that the cemeteries may well be managed by an outsourced partner.  

Work is ongoing 

 

Latest update: Sept 13 

Cemetery fees were updated in line with Councils increase of 2% This is also in line with other local 
cemeteries. 

The Crematorium is providing cover for the cemetery Manager during annual leave and sickness. 

 

 
 
 
 

P
age 32



 

Recommendation:  That the pricing structure be reviewed to ensure that it is simple to understand and that costs of 
individual services reflect the cost to the Council. 

Cabinet response: Pricing structures were simplified in 2009/10 and the cemetery manager will seek to simplify the 
presentation of the fees further for the future.  It is a complex service with many options available, which 
combined with the desire to self finance will require a degree of complexity to be retained.  Wherever 
possible, the range of fees and charges will be simplified, but it is important to ensure a broad choice for 
bereaved as well as aiming to recover full costs wherever appropriate. 

 

Previous updates to 
scrutiny: 

2 February 2012 

Burial fees increased by 100% following service prioritisation.   

 

25 July 2012 

Fees were not increased this year after the dramatic increase in 2011. Burials have decreased at the 
cemetery partly due to increased costs but also due to the increased numbers now using the 
crematorium. Fees were therefore not increased this year. 

 

Latest update: As above regarding fees 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 33



 

Recommendation:  That officers look further at the areas of the Charter for the Bereaved which could be easily 
implemented at Watford in order to improve the Council’s national ranking, for example, 
providing a written explanation of ‘buying’ a grave to purchasers. 

Cabinet response: Actions to improve our national ranking in the Charter for the Bereaved are already under way. 

 

Previous updates to 
scrutiny: 

2 February 2012 

Last charter update submitted Sept 2011.  Increased to 432 points – 28 points above 2010 score.   

 

Rankings are now listed as bronze , silver and gold rather than highest and lowest score, Watford are in 
the bronze section but will continue to increase scores to aim for silver level 

 

25 July 2012 

No further update 

 

Latest update: Latest update submitted to ICCM.  Currently in the Bronze section but increased the scores again this 
year. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 34



 

Recommendation:  That the Council investigates the feasibility of extending the times during which burials can take 
place.  This would mean operating an ‘on call’ system on Saturdays for the digging staff.  The 
extra cost to this service would need to be reflected in a revised pricing structure. 

Cabinet response: Extending opening hours will be investigated by the cemetery manager, however, this is an extension to 
service that will increase costs and will also be more difficult with the reduced core staffing structure that 
is proposed to meet the service prioritisation savings required by the Council.  The cemetery manager 
will aim to strike an appropriate balance between cost, service availability and the conflicting needs of 
different cemetery faiths. 

 

Previous updates to 
scrutiny: 

2 February 2012 

Meeting held with Services Director, Cllr.  Asif Khan and Section Head for Parks and Open Spaces.  
Section Head has written a report on the findings and costings of the options available and options 
currently being discussed. Options subject to costs. 

 

25 July 2012 

Ongoing 

 

Latest update: Options were submitted to the Watford Muslim Burial Board via Cllr. Khan.  No further action taken.  We 
did not receive any further feedback regarding those options. Demand and number of requests remains 
very low.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 35



 

Recommendation:  That the Council considers developing the woodland areas of North Watford Cemetery to allow 
for the scattering of ashes there. 

Cabinet response: The potential use of the woodlands for scattering of ashes will be investigated at the same time, so a 
decision can be made and implemented upon this too. 

 

Previous updates to 
scrutiny: 

2 February 2012 

Scattering of ashes has been discussed.  To date, we have received no requests to carry this out as the 
majority of families wish for a permanent plot where a memorial can be erected.  Ongoing discussions 
taking place with Southern Green Landscape Architects who are developing a Masterplan for the 
cemetery. This may include some sort of memorial garden.  We are currently already able to scatter 
ashes if required but it maybe that the need is just not there. 

 

25 July 2012 

As part of the options appraisal we will investigate whether this is feasible or whether it would be 
detrimental to the woodland. No decision has yet been made and we will ascertain whether it is 
appropriate after carrying out a desk top study as well as local ecological survey of this area of 
woodland. 

 

Latest update: There have been no requests to scatter ashes as this is something the crematorium do free of charge as 
part of their cremation package.  The reason bereaved families come to us is so they can have a 
permanent plot where a memorial can be erected.  I am not sure that this will ever be a popular service 
to provide. 

 

 
 
 
 

P
age 36



Recommendations:  That green burial grounds be included in the planning for future cemetery sites. 

That the Council starts future planning to identify a future site for the cemetery within the next 
few years due to the scarcity of available land and the cost (at least £1 million). 

Cabinet response: The future cemetery provision will need to be resolved in the next few years, as it takes a significant time 
to develop alternative arrangements and a new site (should this be the outcome).  Officers would 
recommend investigating a green burial site and a new cemetery site in 2012.  This will allow the 
Council sufficient time to consider its decisions carefully and to plan for the future in good time. 

 

Previous updates to 
scrutiny: 

2 February 2012 

Discussions already held with planning under future site allocations and options discussed. 

 

25 July 2012 

Ongoing 

 

Latest update: We currently have approximately 8 years of burial space left at North Watford Cemetery. Site allocations 
are currently being discussed with Planning Officers   

 

 
 
 

P
age 37



P
age 38

T
his page is intentionally left blank



17 September 2013  

 
 

Watford Borough Council 
 

Executive Decision Progress Report 
 

May 2013 – May 2014 
 

 
 
 Contact Officer:  Sandra Hancock 
     Committee and Scrutiny Officer  
 
 Telephone:  01923 278377 
 
 Email:   legalanddemocratic@watford.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 

A
genda Item

 8

P
age 39



17 September 2013  

All officer decisions relating to Traffic Regulation Orders and other Borough Council Highways matters are available on the Council’s 
website – http://watford.moderngov.co.uk/mgDelegatedDecisions.aspx?bcr=1  
 

Decision Department Decision  
maker 

Date Key Decision to 
be taken (as shown 
on the Notice of 
Executive Decisions) 

Status 

Appointment of Ground 
Control Ltd after a PQQ and 
ITT procurement process for 
the Watford Parks 
Improvement Programme 

(Part B) 

Community 
Services 

Head of 
Community 
Services  

June 2013  Key decision 

This decision is due to be taken in private due 
to the content of the report.  It is covered by 
Paragraph 3, Schedule 12A, as it includes 
financially and commercially sensitive 
information as part of the procurement 
process. 

Approved by the Head of Community Services 
on 20 June 2013  

Not called in 

To consider the 2012-2013 
Financial Outturn for the 
Authority 

Finance Cabinet July 2013 Key decision 

Agreed by Cabinet on 8 July 2013  

Not called in 

Revised Medium Term 
Financial Strategy 2013-
2017 

Finance Cabinet July 2013  Key decision 

Agreed by Cabinet on 8 July 2013  

Not called in 

New Watford Market Update Legal and 
Property 
Services  

Cabinet July 2013  Key decision 

Agreed by Cabinet on 8 July 2013  

Not called in 

P
age 40



17 September 2013  

Decision Department Decision  
maker 

Date Key Decision to 
be taken (as shown 
on the Notice of 
Executive Decisions) 

Status 

Future delivery of Building 
Control service 

Planning Cabinet July 2013  Key decision 

Agreed by Cabinet on 8 July 2013  

Not called in 

Approval of the Conservation 
Areas Management Plan 

Planning Cabinet July 2013  Key decision 

Agreed by Cabinet on 8 July 2013  

Not called in 

Agree to take forward a 
Compulsory Purchase Order 
to deliver the Watford Health 
Campus and associated road 
infrastructure (Part A) 

Corporate 
Management 

Cabinet July 2013  Key decision 

Agreed by Cabinet on 8 July 2013  

Not called in 

Agree to take forward a 
Compulsory Purchase Order 
to deliver the Watford Health 
Campus and associated road 
infrastructure 

(Part B) 

Corporate 
Management 

Cabinet July 2013  Key decision 

This decision is due to be taken in private due 
to the content of the report.  It is covered by 
Paragraph 3, Schedule 12A, as it includes 
financial information relating to compensation 
and negotiation with interested parties. 

Agreed by Cabinet on 8 July 2013  

Not called in 

P
age 41



17 September 2013  

Decision Department Decision  
maker 

Date Key Decision to 
be taken (as shown 
on the Notice of 
Executive Decisions) 

Status 

To approve the waste 
collection policy for Watford   

Environmental 
Services 

Cabinet July 2013  Key decision 

In accordance with the Access to Information 
Procedure Rule 15 the Chair of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee was notified. 

Agreed by Cabinet on 8 July 2013  

Not called in 

Revocation of out of date 
Supplementary Planning 
documents 

Planning Cabinet N/A New 

Non-key decision 

Agreed by Cabinet on 8 July 2013  

Not called in 

Streetscape design guide Planning Cabinet N/A New 

Non-key decision 

Agreed by Cabinet on 8 July 2013  

Not called in 

Watford Credit Union loan 
guarantee scheme 

Community 
Services 

Cabinet N/A New 

Non-key decision 

Agreed by Cabinet on 8 July 2013  

Not called in 

P
age 42



17 September 2013  

Decision Department Decision  
maker 

Date Key Decision to 
be taken (as shown 
on the Notice of 
Executive Decisions) 

Status 

Strategic Flood Risk 
Assessment – Level 2 

Regeneration 
and 
Development 

Managing 
Director 

N/A New 

Non-key decision 

Agreed by Managing Director on 5 August 
2013. 

Awarding 5 year contract for 
the provision of CCTV 
monitoring staff 

Regeneration 
and 
Development 

Head of 
Regeneration 
and 
Development  

August 2013  New 

Key decision 

This decision is due to be taken in private due 
to the content of the report.  It is covered by 
Paragraph 3, Schedule 12A, as it includes 
commercially sensitive information within the 
evaluation report. 

Agreed by Head of Regeneration and 
Development on 9 August 2013  

Not called in 

Authorisation to formally 
advertise inviting 
representations in relation to 
proposals for the introduction 
of parking controls for 
various roads within Watford  

Regeneration 
and 
Development 

Head of 
Regeneration 
and 
Development 

September 2013 New 

Key decision 

Agreed by Head of Regeneration and 
Development on 13 September 2013 

Call-in deadline 23 September 

Memorandum of 
Understanding – Quality Bus 
Network Partnership 

Regeneration 
and 
Development 

Cabinet September 2013  New 

Key decision 

P
age 43



17 September 2013  

Decision Department Decision  
maker 

Date Key Decision to 
be taken (as shown 
on the Notice of 
Executive Decisions) 

Status 

Management of Disabled 
Parking Bays Task Group 
report 

Democracy 
and 
Governance 

Cabinet N/A New 

Non-key decision 

To be considered in October 

To write off irrecoverable 
debts 

Revenues and 
Benefits  

Cabinet October 2013  Amended 

Key decision 

This item has been deferred from April.  It due 
to be reported to Cabinet in October. 

Approval of the revised 
Homelessness Strategy 

Community 
and Customer 
Services 

Cabinet October 2013 Amended 

Key decision 

Previously proposed to be taken in June and 
then September 2013 

Update on the progress of 
Cassiobury Park Heritage 
Lottery Fund Project and to 
sign off and approve current 
designs 

Community 
and Customer 
Services 

Cabinet November 2013  New 

Key decision 

Adoption of the Watford 
Green Spaces Strategy 

Community 
and Customer 
Services 

Cabinet November 2013  New 

Key decision 

P
age 44



17 September 2013  

Decision Department Decision  
maker 

Date Key Decision to 
be taken (as shown 
on the Notice of 
Executive Decisions) 

Status 

Agreed amendments to the 
Allotment FAQs 

Community 
and Customer 
Services 

Cabinet November 2013  New 

Key decision 

To note the progress on the 
Allotments Investment 
Programme and Farm 
Terrace Update 

Community 
and Customer 
Services 

Cabinet November 2013  New 

Key decision 

Approval of the revised 
Housing Nominations Policy   

Community 
and Customer 
Services 

Cabinet November 2013  Amended 

Key decision 

Previously proposed to be taken in June and 
then September 2013 

Approval of the Private 
Sector Housing Renewal 
Policy 

Community 
and Customer 
Services 

Cabinet  Deleted 

Key decision 

Previously due to be taken by February, then 
June 2013   

This matter has been delayed for the 
foreseeable future. 

 
 

P
age 45



P
age 46

T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
PART A 
 

 

 

Report to: Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date of meeting: 26 September 2013  

Report of: Committee and Scrutiny Support Officer  

Title: Watford Community Housing Trust 
 

1.0 SUMMARY 
 

1.1  This report asks Overview and Scrutiny Committee to review the 
conclusions and recommendations set out in the final draft report from the 
Watford Community Housing Trust Task Group, attached as an Appendix to 
this report, prior to its presentation to the Housing Trust and other parties as 
suggested by the Scrutiny Committee. 
 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION  

 
2.1 that the Overview and Scrutiny Committee reviews the Watford Community 

Housing Trust Task Group's conclusions and recommendations. 
 

 
Contact Officer: 
For further information on this report please contact: Rosy Wassell, 
Committee and Scrutiny Support Officer 
telephone extension: 8375 email: legalanddemocratic@watford.gov.uk  
 
 

 
3.0 DETAILED PROPOSAL 

 
3.1 The task group had been proposed by Councillor Asif Khan as between 

40% and 50% of his casework related to the Housing Trust. 
 

3.2 At Overview and Scrutiny Committee's meeting on 26 March 2013 it was 
agreed that a Task Group would be established to review Watford 
Community Housing Trust as suggested by Councillor Khan.  Its main 
focus would be on the Trust’s communication with all stakeholders and the 
quality of the repairs service. 
 

3.3 The Task Group held its first meeting on 16 April 2013, when it was agreed 
that a survey would be produced for residents seeking their views on the 
Housing Trust and a meeting arranged to meet residents and speak to 
them about their experiences.   The Task Group also agreed it needed to 
speak to the Housing Trust. 
 

Agenda Item 10

Page 47



 

3.4 The Task Group arranged an open meeting for residents at the Town Hall 
and posters were forwarded to various groups and premises around the 
Borough.  The Trust also agreed to promote the meeting and place posters 
where residents would be see them.  Each person attending the meeting 
was provided with the questionnaire which was completed during his or her 
discussion with a Councillor.  The Task Group was pleased that Councillors 
Brandon and McLeod also attended the meeting and heard residents’ 
comments.   
 

3.5 Watford Community Housing Trust was provided with information about the 
areas the Task Group wished to cover when they attended the meeting at 
the Town Hall.  Three representatives from the Housing Trust, including the 
Chief Executive Tina Barnard, attended the Task Group’s meeting. 
 

3.6 Full details of the recommendations and the Task Group's meetings are 
contained in the final draft of the report attached as an Appendix to this 
report. 
 

3.7 Overview and Scrutiny Committee is asked to review the Task Group's 
conclusions and recommendations prior to it being presented to Watford 
Community Housing Trust, the Portfolio Holder, Head of Community and 
Customer Services and other parties as suggested by Members. 
 

 
Appendices  
 
Appendix – Final draft of the report of the Watford Community Housing Trust 

Task Group  
 
Background Papers  
 
Report and minutes of Overview and Scrutiny Committee 21 November 2012 
and 26 March 2013 
 
File Reference  
 
None 

Page 48



D r a f t 

WATFORD COMMUNITY 
HOUSING TRUST TASK GROUP

REVIEW OF SERVICES PROVIDED BY 
WATFORD COMMUNITY HOUSING 

TRUST

SEPTEMBER 2013

Page 49



D r a f t 

Page 50



D r a f t 

CONTENTS

Committee Membership     Page 5

Proposed Recommendations    Page 6 - 7

Background Information     Page 8

Summary of Meetings Pages  9 - 11

Recommendations and Comment Pages  13 - 17 

Bibliography and appendices    Page 18

Appendices      Pages 19 - 50

1 - Task Group scope     Pages 19 - 24
2 - Minutes 16 April 2013 Pages 25 - 28 
3 - Minutes 20 July 2013 Pages 29 - 32 
4 - Minutes 21 August 2013 Pages 33 - 40 
5 - Minutes 3 September 2013 Pages 41 - 42 
6 - Residents’ Survey 30 May 2013 Page 43 
7 - Residents’ Survey summary of responses Pages 45 - 46 
8 - Residents’ Survey additional comments Pages 47 - 48 
9 - Cabinet minutes 18 February 2013 Pages 49 - 50 

3

Page 51



D r a f t 

4

Page 52



D r a f t 

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

Watford Borough Council

Members - Task Group
Councillor Asif Khan Chair of the Task Group and

Councillor for Leggatts Ward 
Councillor Karen Collett Councillor for Woodside Ward 
Councillor Jackie Connal Councillor for Holywell Ward 
Councillor Stephen Johnson Councillor for Leggatts Ward 
Councillor Anne Joynes Councillor for Leggatts Ward 

Other Members attending
Councillor Ian Brandon Councillor for Callowland Ward 
Councillor Kelly McLeod Councillor for Tudor Ward 

External Support and Information 

Tina Barnard Chief Executive,
Watford Community Housing Trust

Gareth Lewis Director of Property and New Business,
Watford Community Housing Trust 

Loreen Herzig Head of Customer Insight,
Watford Community Housing Trust 

Sue Pelton Executive Assistant, 
Watford Community Housing Trust 

Officer Support 

Watford Borough Council
Sandra Hancock Committee and Scrutiny Officer 
Rosy Wassell Committee and Scrutiny Support Officer 

5

Page 53



D r a f t 

PROPOSED RECOMMENDATIONS TO PRESENT TO 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

Proposed Recommendations:

COMMUNICATION

1. All new tenants should be visited by an officer of the Trust to ensure 
that they are satisfied with their living arrangements 

 2. To inform residents that their neighbourhood teams are available to 
clarify any issues 

 3. The handbook must be made more user-friendly, updated regularly and 
accessible to all residents 

 4. To Improve clarity in presentation of bills sent to residents ensuring that 
all charges are clearly itemised 

 5. To provide a clear process for residents to query any charges with
which they disagree

 6. To reduce the waiting time for residents to an ‘industry acceptable’ 
service.  The telephone should be answered within six rings.

7. A free phone number should be introduced for residents to call the 
Trust

 8. The Trust website must be updated daily to ensure its contact details 
are current

 9. The Trust website must reflect the needs of its tenants and its aims and 
strategies

10. Staff who communicate with residents must have regular training 

11. A clear process needs to be put in place where vulnerable residents 
are recognised and services provided to them to meet their individual
needs.

12. The process to communicate with vulnerable residents must be clear.
Staff should be proactive in dealing with vulnerable residents.

SERVICE CHARGES

6

Page 54



D r a f t 

13. Service Charges must be constantly reviewed.

14. Service Charges should be itemised for each individual property and 
items clearly defined.

REPAIRS

15. The ‘first time’ satisfaction rate must be increased substantially 

16. A much more vigorous monitoring of contractors by managers must be 
 undertaken 

17. Residents to be positively encouraged to return satisfaction surveys 

18. The Trust must be much more accountable to its residents and 
 stakeholders 

PERFORMANCE

19. The Trust should demonstrate to tenants that they are working towards 
joining the top quartile group of its peers. 

20. The Trust should reaffirm its commitment that the development of 500 
new homes in the areas of Watford and Three Rivers by 2016 is a main 
objective of its business plan.

The Task Group would like to acknowledge that Watford Community Housing 
Trust had achieved some good results in the five years of their administration.
They have noted compliments received from tenants who have praised the 
good quality of sheltered accommodation and the helpful attitude of many
members of staff at the Trust’s Clarendon Road offices.

7

Page 55



D r a f t 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

At the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 21 November 
2012 Councillor Khan said that he would like to propose a review on the 
Watford Community Housing Trust (WCHT) as between 40% and 50% of his 
casework related to the Trust.

The Committee and Scrutiny Officer advised that she would circulate the 
proposal form to Members interested in taking part.

It was anticipated that the review would produce the following outcomes: 

! An improvement in the quality of service provided by the WCHT for 
repairs

! A review of the policies in place regarding vulnerable residents

! A review of the ways in which WCHT communicated with all 
stakeholders

In order to obtain relevant evidence it was proposed that: 

! Feedback be obtained from local residents through a survey

! Interviews be conducted with residents

! A check should be made of Performance data

The Task Group would comprise: 

Councillor Asif Khan (Proposer) – Councillor for Leggatts Ward 
Councillor Karen Collett – Councillor for Woodside Ward 
Councillor Jackie Connal – Councillor for Holywell Ward 
Councillor Stephen Johnson – Councillor for Leggatts Ward 
Councillor Anne Joynes – Councillor for Leggatts Ward 

SUMMARY OF MEETINGS

8

Page 56



D r a f t 

First Meeting  -  16 April 2013

Councillor Khan was elected Chair.

Members agreed that the following information would be useful: 

! How complaints from tenants were dealt with – whether a form were 
available for tenants to use to feed back on contractors’ repair work 

! Whether there was any form of quality control for work – what internal 
checks and control systems were in place 

! What procedures and policies were in place to help vulnerable 
residents

! What procedures were employed by residents when they had a 
complaint, the quality of the response and whether the matter was 
satisfactorily resolved 

! An understanding of procedure regarding void properties, specifically 
the process for making the property available for new tenants 

Members discussed the recently introduced service charges; there had been 
considerable casework for ward councillors associated with these charges 
and Members considered that greater clarity in the Trusts’ communication was 
required.

Information Gathering: 
Members agreed that information could be gained through: 

! A survey of residents

! The Trust’s annual report 

! An informal meeting between Members and residents to discuss 
issues on which residents had concerns.

The following ACTIONS were AGREED: 

1. That Members devise a survey for residents asking for their views on: 

! Communication with the Trust 

! Repairs 

! Complaints

! What the Trust does well and what could be improved 
Members to format questions and email to other members of the task 
group by the following week.

2. Service Charges:

! To request clarity from the Trust on what the service charges cover.

! It was agreed that different areas of the borough would require 
different letters on this issue.

3. Informal meetings:

! Members to collect information at the informal meetings and then 
collate responses.

The minutes for this meeting can be found in Appendix 2 to this report

9

Page 57



D r a f t 

Second Meeting  -  30 May 2013

Tenants had been invited to attend an informal meeting with Members to bring 
to their attention any problems they may have encountered in dealing with the 
Trust.

Attendees were given survey forms to fill in and the results analysed.

At least 30 members of the public attended the meeting and 30 completed 
forms were received. 

Below is a brief summary of responses: 

! 19 responses indicated that tenants were unhappy with the Trusts’ 
housing repairs service 

! 23 respondents were unsatisfied with the way their issues were dealt 
with by the Trust 

! 24 people said that they would be willing to complete a satisfaction 
slip

! 28 respondents felt that individual letters should be sent to tenants 
with clearer information regarding the service charges 

Full details of the Residents’ survey  can be found in Appendices 6, 7 and 8 of 
this report.

Third Meeting  -  30 July 2013

Members had noted the results of the residents’ survey forms.

The Task Group noted that attendees had raised the following points: 

! Communications: Tenants considered that information in the Trusts’ 
communications was frequently difficult to understand 

! Void properties: Tenants had made complaints that repairs had not 
been completed prior to their moving into new properties.

! Quality Control: Tenants had stated that staff did not check that 
repairs were satisfactorily completed and that contractors did not arrive 
at the appointed time. 

! Satisfaction slips: Tenants would like to fill in a satisfaction slip once 
work had been completed. 

Members agreed to invite members of the Trust’s board to a meeting in order
to discuss areas in which they considered that tenants were experiencing 
problems.

10

Page 58



D r a f t 

Members compiled a list of questions which included queries on 
communication, service charges and repairs.

The minutes for this meeting can be found in Appendix 3 to this report

Fourth Meeting  -  21 August 2013

The Task Group had invited members of the Watford Community Housing 
Trust to this meeting. Tina Barnard, Chief Executive of the Trust,  Gareth 
Lewis, Director of Property and New Business and Loreen Herzig, Head of 
Customer Insight, were able to attend.

The Trust’s representatives replied to Members’ questions on: 

! Aims and Strategies 

! Communication

! Service Charges

! Repairs 

! Social Enterprise

The minutes for this meeting can be found in Appendix 4 to this report

Fifth Meeting  -  3 September 2013

Members discussed the meeting with the Watford Community Housing Trust’s 
representatives and the answers they had received. 

The questions and answers received by the Trust were considered and the 
Task Group drew up the list of recommendations which they hoped to present 
to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 26th September.

The minutes for this meeting can be found in Appendix 5 to this report

11

Page 59



D r a f t 

12

Page 60



D r a f t 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND COMMENTS 

COMMUNICATION

Recommendation 1 ~ All new tenants should be visited by an officer of the 
Trust to ensure that they are satisfied with their living arrangements

The Task Group learnt that problems had arisen for tenants who had moved 
into Trust properties.  Examples included difficulty in reading meters, faults in 
properties and complaints that issues were not resolved prior to the tenancy 
starting.  The Task Group concluded that all new tenants should receive a visit 
from an officer to ensure that they are finding their homes satisfactory.  Any 
problems could then be dealt with as soon as possible.

It would also be helpful if the Neighbourhood teams visited on a regular basis 
to remain aware of any problems the tenants were experiencing. 

Recommendation 2 ~ To inform residents that their neighbourhood teams are 
available to clarify any issues

The Trust ‘s Chief Executive had stated that any communication with tenants 
must be legally binding and that tenants could request help from the 
neighbourhood teams or from the Citizens’ Advice Bureau.  The Task Group 
considered that tenants should be fully aware that neighbourhood teams 
could assist them in clarifying any issues which were unclear.

Recommendation 3 ~ The handbook must be made more user-friendly, 
updated regularly and accessible to all residents

At the meeting with the Task Group, the Trust’s Director of Property and New 
Business advised that a new tenant should take an ‘opening’ meter reading 
using the tenants’ handbook.  One Task Group member, however, noted that 
instructions for using certain equipment was incorrect.

The Task Group was also concerned that not every resident could access the 
contents of the handbook (some residents had sight problems or were unable
to read).  It was felt that the handbook should be accessible to all and that 
special attention be given to the needs of vulnerable tenants.

Regular updating would necessarily mean that tenants could be regularly 
supplied with new handbooks or at least updated information in accessible 
form.

13

Page 61



D r a f t 

Recommendation 4 ~ To Improve clarity in presentation of bills sent to 
residents ensuring that all charges are clearly itemised

Residents find bills sent by the Trust convoluted and unclear.  They 
frequently cause tenants anxiety and stress leading some tenants to believe 
that they have been charged twice for the same service.  The Task Group felt
that bills should be much clearer and should be fully itemised.   It was 
considered that bills should be individualised, to take into account not only 
individual properties but also the needs of vulnerable tenants.

Recommendation 5 ~ To provide a clear process for residents to query any
charges with which they disagree

It was understood that some tenants had had difficulty understanding bills 
they were sent.  It was frequently believed that they had been charged the 
incorrect amount.  In addition they had found difficulty in obtaining answers to 
their queries.

Recommendation 6 ~ To reduce the waiting time for residents to an ‘industry 
acceptable’ service.  The telephone should be answered within six rings.

Tenants had advised that they had received no response when telephoning 
the Trust.

The Trust had informed that it took an average of 89 seconds for a caller to 
speak to the member of staff who could deal with their enquiry.  This was 
considered to be far too long; it was imperative that this be improved upon. 

Recommendation 7 ~ A free phone number should be introduced for residents 
to call the Trust

This initiative would be helpful for tenants who had difficulty accessing the 
Trust.

Recommendation 8 ~ The Trust website must be updated daily to ensure its 
contact details are current

Members noted that the website frequently displayed out of date information.

Recommendation 9 ~ The Trust website must reflect the needs of its tenants 
and its aims and strategies

Both Tenants and members of the Task Group had found the website difficult 
to access and to navigate.

14

Page 62



D r a f t 

Recommendation 10 ~ Staff who communicate with residents must have 
regular training

Councillors noted that they had received complaints from residents who had 
felt intimidated by staff at the Trust.  Tenants who had attended the ‘drop in’ 
session had made similar complaints.  The Task Group considered that it was
important that staff had regular ‘customer facing’ training which should also
include training in diversity awareness..

Recommendation 11 ~ A clear process needs to be put in place where 
vulnerable residents are recognised and services provided to them to meet 
their individual needs.

It was noted that tenants of the Trust had greatly varying needs.  In addition to 
regular training in dealing with customers, staff should have additional training 
in order to effectively deal with the individual needs of vulnerable tenants.

Recommendation 12 ~ The process to communicate with vulnerable residents 
must be clear.  Staff should be proactive in dealing with vulnerable residents.

At a meeting with the Task Group, the Trust’s Chief Executive advised, that
WCHT had profile information on all tenants; this was regularly updated.
The Task Group appreciate that a number of the Trust’s tenants could be 
classed as ‘vulnerable’ and consequently needed specialised help in order for 
them to access services.

The Task noted that bills appeared to be unclear in general.  This was an 
even greater problem for vulnerable residents: e.g. those who had difficulty 
reading the bills or had other disabilities.  It was considered that staff work 
more proactively in order to ensure clear communication with all tenants.

SERVICE CHARGES

Recommendation 13 ~ Service Charges must be constantly reviewed.

The Task Group recognises that Service Charges have caused great anxiety 
and concern to residents and that some tenants had been charged for 
services they had not received.  The Task Group agreed that greater clarity 
with regard to the charges was imperative.

15

Page 63



D r a f t 

Recommendation 14 ~ Service Charges should be itemised for each 
individual property and items clearly defined.

Fully itemised bills would ensure that tenants paid only for services which they 
had received.  Where tenants had been charged for services for which they 
had not been provided, full and immediate refunds should be made.

REPAIRS

Recommendation 15~ The ‘first time’ satisfaction rate must be increased 
substantially

The Trust’s target for achieving a satisfactory result first time was 75%.  In 
actuality, 74.9% had been achieved. The Task Group felt that this was 
unacceptable and must be substantially increased.

The Task Group recommended that the Trust take a more professional 
attitude towards residents’ repairs.  A letter to tenants prior to the first visit 
would be advisable and also a telephone call to let the tenant know the 
contractor was en route.

Recommendation 16~ A much more vigorous monitoring of contractors by 
managers must be undertaken

According to tenants at the ‘drop in’ session, the staff did not check that 
repairs were completed satisfactorily.   Other residents had reported that 
contractors had sometimes arrived without a prior appointment.

The Task Group felt that the Trust should more fully monitor completion of 
work.  This would include the return of feedback forms from tenants.

Recommendation 17~ Residents to be positively encouraged to return 
satisfaction surveys

Tenants at the ‘drop in’ session had stated that they would like to fill in a 
satisfaction slip after work had been completed.  The Task Group agreed that 
In order to ensure that tenants’ views were taken into consideration, they 
should be positively encouraged to advise on completed work.

One Member suggested that every contractor be supplied with a survey form 
which he could give to the tenants once work had been finalised.  The 
contractor should also encourage the tenants to return the slip.

It was agreed that the satisfaction slips should be graded by the Trust.

16

Page 64



D r a f t 

Recommendation 18 ~ The Trust must be much more accountable to its 
residents and stakeholders

Members considered that the repairs service was inadequate and that the 
Trust’s priority should be towards management of buildings and homes with 
less involvement in community issues.

Recommendation 19  ~ The Trust should demonstrate to tenants that they are 
working towards joining the top quartile group of its peers. 

When the Trust is benchmarked with the peer group top quartile its 
performance is poor. Last year it performed consistently below this standard. 
Members felt that this is an area the Trust must address.

Recommendation 20  ~ The Trust should reaffirm its commitment that the 
development of 500 new homes in the areas of Watford and Three Rivers by 
2016 is a main objective of its business plan.

Members were concerned that at the Task Group’s meeting with the Trust, the 
term "aspiration" was used.

17

Page 65



D r a f t 

BIBLIOGRAPHY AND APPENDICES

Bibliography

The following documents were found to be useful: 

1. Report to Cabinet 18 February 2013: 

http://watford.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s4348/Report%20of%20the%20Ex
ecutive%20Director%20Services.pdf

2. Watford Community Housing Trust  Internal Audit  2012: 

http://watford.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s4349/Appendix%20I.pdf

3. WBC Housing Strategy 2008 – 2011 / 2008 – 2013: 

http://watford.moderngov.co.uk/Data/Call-
In%20and%20Performance%20Scrutiny%20Committee/20090924/Agenda/att
2980.pdf

Appendices:

Appendix 1: Task Group scope 
Appendix 2: Minutes 16 April 2013 
Appendix 3: Minutes 20 July 2013 
Appendix 4: Minutes 21 August 2013 
Appendix 5: Draft Minutes 3 September 2013 
Appendix 6: Residents’ Survey 30 May 2013 
Appendix 7: Residents’ Survey summary of responses 
Appendix 8: Residents’ Survey additional comments 
Appendix 9: Cabinet minutes 18 February 2013

18

Page 66



Suggestions for topics to be scrutinised – evaluation table 

A Member, Officer or member of the public suggesting a topic for scrutiny must complete Section1 as fully as possible. Completed
tables will be presented to Overview & Scrutiny for consideration. 

Section 1 – Scrutiny Suggestion

Proposer:  Councillor Asif Khan

Topic recommended for 
scrutiny:

Please include as much detail 
as is available about the specific 
such as; 

! areas which should be 
included in the review.

! areas which should be 
excluded from the review.

! Whether the focus should be 
on past performance, future 
policy or both.

Give details 

The area of scrutiny is the quality of service provided by Watford Community Housing Trust to
local residents. Including areas of repairs.

Other areas that need to be looked at include the introduction of the service charges by the WCHT 
and its financial impact on residents and how the charges will affect the quality of service level.

What policies are in place to improve this and the levels of control the WCHT has in place to 
resolve complaints.

How does the WCHT communicate to all stakeholders, including residents, tenants, councillors 
and council officials.

Why have you recommended 
this topic for scrutiny?

Give details 

Much of my casework involves dealing with residents’ complaints about the poor level of repairs. It 
also includes service that is received from the WCHT. There have been a number of examples 
where the most vulnerable have had poor service which resulted in an anxious time for them.(for 
example, a pensioner on means tested benefit without heating for 4 days during the snow. A 
family with young children without heating or hot water for 5 days) 

19

P
age 67



What are the specific 
outcomes you wish to see 
from the review?

Examples might include:

! To identify what is being 
done and what the potential 
barriers are; 

! To review relevant 
performance indicators;

! To compare our policies with 
those of a similar authority; 

! To assess the 
environmental/social
impacts;

! To Benchmark current 
service provision; 

! To find out community 
perceptions and experience; 

! To identify the gap between 
provision and need

Give details 

To see an improvement for the quality of service provided by the WCHT on repairs. 

To review the policies in place regarding vulnerable residents.

To review the ways in which The WCHT communicates with all stakeholders.

.

20

P
age 68



How do you think evidence 
might be obtained? 

Examples might include

! Questionnaires/Surveys

! Site visits 

! Interviewing witnesses

! Research

! Performance data 

! Public hearings

! Comparisons with other local 
authorities

Give details 

Feedback from local residents. 

Interviews of tenants  (some maybe willing to come to the meetings and pass on their comments) 

Check performance data. 

Feedback from survey

Does the proposed item meet the following criteria?

It must affect a group or 
community of people 

Give details 

It impacts WCHT tenants and residents who live in areas where the WCHT now manages.

It must relate to a service, event 
or issue in which the council has 
a significant stake 

Give details 

It relates to the management of the housing stock and the areas which the WCHT now looks after 
which was once done by the council.

21

P
age 69



It must not have been a topic of 
scrutiny within the last 12 months

There will be exceptions to this 
arising from notified changing
circumstances.  Scrutiny will also 
maintain an interest in the 
progress of recommendations 
and issues arising from past 
reports.

Please confirm

NA

It must not be an issue, such as 
planning or licensing, which is 
dealt with by another council 
committee

Please confirm

NA

Does the topic meet the 
council’s priorities? 1. Making Watford a better place to live in !

2. To provide the lead for Watford’s sustainable economic growth 

3. Promoting an active, cohesive and well informed Town !

4. To operate the Council efficiently and effectively 

Please confirm which ones 

22

P
age 70



Are you aware of any 
limitations of time, other 
constraints or risks which
need to be taken into account?

Factors to consider are:

! forthcoming milestones, 
demands on the relevant 
service area and member
availability:

! imminent policy changes 
either locally, regionally or 
nationally within the area 
under review.

Include details 

There is an introduction of the WCHT service charges.

Service charges will be introduced in April 2013 

Ground maintenance charges will be introduced in April 2014 

Does the topic involve a 
Council partner or other 
outside body?

Include details 

It involves the Watford Community Housing Trust. 

23

P
age 71



Are there likely to be any 
Equality implications which will 
need to be considered? 

Protected characteristics under 
the Equality Act 2010 are: 

! Age
Disab! ility

! Gender reassignment 
! Pregnancy or maternity

Religion or belief 

Sexual orientation 

! Race
!

! Sex
!

! Marriage or civil partnership 
(only in respect of the 
requirement to have due 
regard to the need to 
eliminate discrimination)

An impact of quality of services and repairs needs to involve whether certain groups with protected 
characteristics are being affected over the other.

Sign off 
(It is expected that any Councillor proposing a topic agreed by Overview and Scrutiny Committee will participate in the Task Group)

Councillor/Officer Date
Asif Khan 23/01/13

24

P
age 72



Appendix 2 
WATFORD COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST TASK GROUP 

16 April 2013 

Present: Councillor Khan (Chair) 
Councillors Collett, Connal and Joynes 

Officers: Committee and Scrutiny Officer 
Committee and Scrutiny Support Officer (RW) 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR 

The Task Group was asked to elect a Chair for the Task Group. 

 AGREED 

that Councillor Khan be elected Chair of the Watford Community Housing Trust 
Task Group. 

2. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies had been received from Councillor Johnson. 

3. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no disclosures of interest. 

4. SCRUTINY PROPOSAL – WATFORD COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST

The Committee and Scrutiny Officer explained the documents with which the
Task Group members had been supplied.

The Committee and Scrutiny Officer referred to the Performance Data report, 
which had been presented to Call-in and Performance Scrutiny Committee in 
2009.  She advised that much of the information was now out of date; the 
Housing Trust intended to update this information to provide performance 
statistics and benchmarking.  She added that the Councillors’ news sheet had 
been included and said that the Trust had asked whether the Task Group would 
like any other information to be forwarded as background information. 

The Chair stressed that the group was keen to work with the Trust as it was felt 
that officers performed well.  He added however, that some local residents had
raised specific concerns.

Further Information considered necessary to carry out the review
Councillor Collett noted that it would be useful to obtain information on how 
complaints from tenants were dealt with.  She asked whether a form were 
available for tenants to use in order to feed back on repair work by contractors.

25
Page 73



Councillor Joynes questioned whether there was any form of quality control for 
work provided.

The Chair said that it would be wise to ascertain what procedures and policies 
were in place to aid vulnerable residents such as the very young or the elderly.
He added that the Task Group should also identify what procedures were put in 
place to remedy problems. 

Members commented on individual situations where problems had not been 
resolved in timely fashion.

Councillor Connal explained that residents were unsure whom to contact in 
order to achieve a speedy result; Councillor Joynes considered that timeframes 
for completion of work should be written into the service level agreement.

Councillor Collett said that it would be useful to know which tenants had recently 
requested repair work and what their experience had been.  She added that in 
the event that tenants had had cause for complaint it would be instructive to 
know what procedures they had employed to complain, the quality of response 
and whether the matter had been resolved to the resident’s satisfaction.

Questions to be raised with Watford Community Housing Trust
The Committee and Scrutiny Officer suggested that the Trust be presented with
scenarios and asked what processes would be employed in those cases and 
what further steps would be taken if residents were not satisfied with results.
She urged that these questions should not be specific residents’ cases.

Councillor Collett noted problems which had occurred in relation to void 
properties.

The Task Group agreed that it would be wise to understand the procedure 
regarding void properties: specifically the process of making the property 
available for the new occupants.

The Committee and Scrutiny Officer suggested that questions on void properties
could be linked with queries on repairs.

The Chair said that it would be relevant to know what internal checks and control 
systems were in place; Councillor Joynes added that it was important that 
constant reviews were conducted in order to understand which processes 
worked well and which did not.

The Chair raised the issue of the recently-introduced service charges stating 
that he had received a considerable quantity of casework on this matter.

Councillor Collett advised that several residents had contacted her as they felt 
that they were paying twice for the same work to be carried out.  She added that 
there appeared to be several different ideas on what the charges were actually 
for and suggested that more clarity was required.

The Chair agreed with other members of the Group that the Trust could be more 
transparent when dealing with these charges. 

26
Page 74



How the Task Group wishes to gather the views of residents and tenants.
The Chair asked from whom the Task Group would like to obtain evidence and 
information.  He considered that information from the Trust would be imperative 
and added that it was probable that at least two residents from his ward would 
be prepared to give evidence.

The Committee and Scrutiny Officer reminded Members that questions should 
be limited to the scope of the Task Group and should not include any other 
matters.

The Task Group then discussed how evidence could be gathered.

The Chair referred to page 3 of the evaluation table and said he considered that 
evidence could be gained from a survey of residents and also through the 
Trust’s annual report.

The Committee and Scrutiny Officer explained that whilst the Council did not 
have access to residents’ addresses, it would be possible to conduct the survey 
with the assistance of the Trust and residents’ associations.  She added that 
surveys could also be achieved through invitation to tenant groups although 
numbers of invitees should be limited.  She suggested that a meeting could be 
arranged where small groups of residents could meet with Members on an 
informal basis in order to discuss issues on which they had concerns.

The Task Group considered that this would work well as invitees could include a 
diversity of local residents and feedback would also be easier to obtain through
a focus group.   The Chair advised that residents could write comments for 
posting in a ‘suggestions box’ if they did not wish to speak to individual 
councillors at the meeting. 

The Committee and Scrutiny Officer suggested that a letter of invitation be 
drawn up which could be forwarded to tenant groups. 

It was noted that it would not be possible for officers to minute the informal 
meetings with residents.

Suggestions to advertise the survey included an item in the Watford Observer, 
information in the ‘About Watford’ magazine and a poster.

It was considered wise to conduct the survey before consultation with Watford 
Community Housing Trust.

The Chair suggested that other councillors could be invited to the consultation 
meeting with the Trust. 

ACTIONS:
1. To devise a survey for residents asking for their views on: 

! Communication with the Trust 

! Repairs 

! Complaints

! What the Trust does well and what could be improved 

27
Page 75



Members to format questions and email to other members of the task group 
by the following week.

2. Service Charges:

! To request clarity from the Trust on what the service charges cover.

! It was agreed that different areas of the borough would require different 
letters on this issue.

3. Informal meetings:

! Members to collect information at the informal meetings and then collate 
responses.

! A box to be made available for written comments.

! A meeting room to be booked: possibly the amenity area on the ground 
floor

! Two sessions could be held on the same evening: possibly at 6.00 p.m. 
and 7.00 p.m. 

4. Committee and Scrutiny Support Officer to email Councillor Johnson to
update on the current meeting.

5. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 

It was AGREED that the next meeting would take place after the forthcoming 
elections.  13th and 15th May were suggested.  Members to email Democratic 
Services to advise which date would be most convenient.

    Chair
    Watford Community Housing Trust Task

Group
The meeting started at 6.35 p.m.
and finished at 7.30 p.m. 

f 30/04 

28
Page 76



Appendix 3 
WATFORD COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST TASK GROUP 

30 July  2013 

 Present:  Councillor Khan (Chair)
Councillors Collett, Johnson and Joynes 

 Officers: Committee and Scrutiny Support Officer (RW) 

6. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies had been received from Councillor Connal.

7. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no disclosures of interest. 

8. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes of the meeting of 16 April 2013 were submitted and signed. 

9. RESIDENTS’ SURVEY

The Task Group agreed that the meeting with tenants had been a very useful 
exercise.  The Chair said that the quality and detail of tenants’ responses had 
been excellent and he noted that a pleasing number of residents had attended 
the session.

The Group noted that tenants had raised the following points: 

! Communications – Tenants found the information in newsletters and 
individual letters difficult to understand with complicated language.
Councillor Collett felt that information should be written in more simple, 
plain English.  She noted that some tenants needed support with 
reading.

! Void properties – It would be valuable to know what happened when a 
property was left empty.  Two of the tenants at the meeting had stated 
that meters had not been changed nor repairs managed prior to them 
moving in.

! Quality Control – It appeared that staff did not check that repairs were 
completed satisfactorily; there were no inspections.

! Cleanliness of the communal areas was an issue for many tenants. 

! Contractors did not arrive at the appointed time. 

! Tenants would like to fill in a satisfaction slip after work had been
completed

! Many tenants felt that there had been no improvement since take-over 
from the Council’s management.

29
Page 77



Communication
Councillor Collett noted that tenants had reported that they had had no response 
when telephoning the trust. 

The Chair pointed out that the average reported response time between 
December 2012 and May 2013 had been 89 seconds.  He added that whilst there 
was a strict set of rules with regard to response times the Council was unable to 
monitor this.

Members suggested that when one phone had rung for 30 seconds, the call 
should be diverted to another officer’s phone.  Members also questioned whether
additional staff were employed during busy periods.

Councillor Collett expressed concern that some tenants had difficulty interpreting
letters from the Trust.  She said that the Trust should be asked whether individual
letters were sent to those with special needs and whether the Trust was aware of 
which tenants might have a disability and consequently need help in this area.
She suggested that the Trust be asked how communication was made more 
simple for tenants. 

The Task Group agreed that it would be wise to determine in detail how the Trust 
communicated with tenants, specifically those with a disability and whether there 
was indirect discrimination.

The Task Group was also interested in tenants’ experiences with staff at the Trust; 
tenants at the ‘drop in’ session on 30 May had complained that officers were not 
always polite during telephone conversations.  The group proposed that the Trust 
should be asked: 

! Whether the Trust was aware that some tenants felt intimidated by officers 

! Whether the staff were trained in diversity awareness and how to deal with 
vulnerable tenants 

! Whether a record was kept of which tenants had disabilities which made 
communication difficult 

Service Charges
Councillor Collett suggested that clarity with regard to the maintenance charges 
was required.  Tenants of the Trust felt that whilst they had to pay these charges 
under their tenancy agreement, there was no similar obligation on homeowners to 
do so.

Councillor Johnson agreed that this arrangement seemed unfair and expressed
his concern that the Trust should be fair to all its tenants.

Members discussed the charges and agreed that all bills should ideally be 
itemised.  It was agreed that: 

! The bills appeared to be convoluted and unclear and caused tenants undue 
anxiety

! The bills’ lack of clarity resulted in many tenants belief that they had been 
charged twice for the same service 

30
Page 78



Councillor Johnson suggested that it would  be pertinent to know how much the 
Trust expected to raise through service charges, how much the initiative cost  and 
whether it was cost effective.  He quoted examples of costs including one for 
cleaning of communal areas at £2592 and questioned whether this was a ‘market’ 
rate or whether the residents could clean these areas themselves.

The Chair noted that a number of tenants at the meeting had mentioned 
Discretionary Payments; he said it would be wise to discover whether these were 
linked to the service charges, what services the discretionary payments provided 
and what would be the impact on the WCHT were these charges to be 
abandoned.

Repairs
Councillor Collett advised that the 2012 / 2013 report had stated that 74.9% of 
repairs had been completed within the target time frame.  The group did not 
consider that this was satisfactory.

Councillor Joynes said that residents in her ward had advised that contractors had 
sometimes arrived to effect repairs or maintenance at their property without a prior 
appointment.

The Chair pointed out that utility companies were able to telephone customers and 
advise on arrival times; this service should also be provided by the Trust.

In response to a suggestion that the task group should concentrate on individual
cases, Councillor Collett advised that the tenants themselves should not be 
named.

Members thought that the Trust provided an inadequate repairs service.  It was 
considered that management of buildings and homes was taking a ‘backseat’ to 
community involvement.

The Task Group felt that the Trust should be asked: 

! What were their main priorities

! Whether they considered that sufficient resources were expended on 
repairs and maintenance.

! How the Trust monitored completion of work, how this was carried out and 
whether the Trust management team had sight of feedback from tenants 

! In what way requests from tenants for repairs were processed 

Councillor Johnson said he would be interested in the Trust’s priorities for its 
tenants and whether the Trust considered itself to be different from other 
residents’ associations or housing trusts.

The Chair referred to the compliments offered by tenants at the meeting and 
pointed out that one tenant considered that the sheltered accommodation was of 
good quality and that the staff in Clarendon Road were ‘good’.

Other members of the Task Group agreed that the newsletters and community 
booklets were good. 

31
Page 79



Councillor Johnson noted the Community Enterprise and expressed a wish to be 
informed by the Trust on how the tenants had benefited through this initiative and 
what had been achieved.

10. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting would take place on 21 August 2013 at 7.00 p.m.  The Chief 
Executive of the Trust had agreed to attend and a list of areas of concern for the 
Task Group would be sent to her prior to the meeting. 

    Chair
    Watford Community Housing Trust Task

Group
The meeting started at 2.30 p.m.
and finished at 4.00 p.m. 

13/8

32
Page 80



Appendix 4 
WATFORD COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST TASK GROUP 

21 August  2013 

 Present: Councillor Khan (Chair)
Councillors Collett, Connal, Johnson and Joynes

Also Present: Tina Barnard Chief Executive, Watford Community Housing Trust
Gareth Lewis Director of Property and New Business,

Watford Community Housing Trust 
Loreen Herzig  Head of Customer Insight,

   Watford Community Housing Trust
Councillor Ian Brown, Councillor for Woodside Ward 

 Officers: Committee and Scrutiny Support Officer (RW) 

11. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

No apologies had been received. 

12. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no disclosures of interest. 

13. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes of the meeting of 30 July 2013 were submitted and signed. 

14. MEETING WITH THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OF THE WATFORD COMMUNITY 
HOUSING TRUST

The Chair asked Tina Barnard to give a brief overview of Watford Community 
Housing Trust’s aims and strategies prior to answering questions from 
Members.

Tina Barnard advised that the Trust was envisaged as a community business 
with the aim of ‘Better homes friendlier communities . . . . together’.  To this end, 
£66 million had been invested in improvements during the first six years of the 
Trust’s existence and £9 million on ‘better communities’.  The Trust’s strategy 
with regard to its community was to involve tenants in scrutiny and also work 
programmes.

Tina Barnard then expanded on the Better Homes element of the vision, 
explaining that this encompassed repairs and maintenance; she added that it 
was hoped to build another 500 new dwellings.  She advised that the areas on 
which Watford Community Housing Trust (WCHT) concentrated were: excellent 
services, communities, growth and organisation of choice. She then gave 

33
Page 81



examples of work and initiatives in these areas: 

Services: Whilst it was agreed that excellence was not achieved 100% of the 
time, the Trust was endeavouring to make improvements.

Community Focus: A community event, Watford 2013, was planned for 
September; community hubs had been initiated in the Harebreaks and at 
Leavesden Green. 

Growth (Bricks and Mortar): 500 new homes were planned, some of which were 
already on site; these included 21 flats in the High Street which would open in 
2014 and 16 new properties in Holywell ward.

Organisation and Choice: WCHT aspired to work co-operatively with their 
tenants and partners. 

The Members then questioned WCHT’s representatives.

Aims and Strategies:
Is the Trust different from other residents’ associations or housing trusts 
and if so in what way?

Tina Barnard explained that other large-scale voluntary transfer’s (LSVT) 
governance structures comprised the local authority, tenants and independent 
members each of whom had a one third block vote on governance issues.  At 
WCHT only tenants and leaseholders could be members.  The Board  was 
composed of tenants as the largest group, then independent members and 
finally two councillors.

What is the difference between a ‘commercial business’ and the Trust? 

Tina Barnard said that whilst the Trust was a ‘business’ and consequently 
needed to generate surplus funds it also had significant input into community 
needs.  As examples, Tina Barnard drew attention to the Social Enterprise 
initiative and schemes to help people back into work.

Councillor Collett commented that there appeared to be great involvement in 
social reform and community empowerment whilst the main worry for residents 
was repairs and maintenance of their homes.  It was felt that the Trust’s focus 
was too wide and that housing needs were not adequately met. 

Tina Barnard reiterated that the aim for the Trust was ‘Better Homes Friendlier 
Communities Together’.  She advised that an organisational restructure had 
been launched on 1 July 2013 to help achieve their Business Plan.

Gareth Lewis added that the programme on repairs and improvements was 
expanding.

Tina Barnard advised that community/social involvement in the current year 
would take the form of one big event, Watford 2013, rather than a number of 
smaller events as in past years.

34
Page 82



Which communication areas are in need of improvement? 

Tina Barnard replied that any organisation would say that Communication was in 
most need of improvement.  The Trust had acknowledged that their greatest 
error was the letter regarding service charges; the Trust apologised for this.
Feedback and complaints indicated areas that could be improved.

Communication:
Residents find the bills for Service Charges convoluted and unclear and 
this can be the cause of stress and anxiety for tenants.   Could the bills be 
made clearer and itemised? 

Tina Barnard replied that the bills were itemised and passed copies of examples 
to all attendees at the meeting.

With regard to clarity, Tina Barnard advised that one housing association had,
some years previously, attempted to make rent letters easier for their tenants to 
understand.  In a test case, however, a tenant had challenged the legitimacy of 
a rent increase letter which had not been in a legal format.  There was 
consequently a need to make any communication regarding rent legally binding; 
this inevitably lead to less clear and understandable language.  She stressed 
that tenants could request help from the neighbourhood teams or from the 
Citizens Advice Bureau.

Are standard letters sent to all tenants or are individual letters sent to 
tenants who have special needs or disabilities? 

Tina Barnard advised that the Trust had profile information on all tenants and 
this was updated regularly; tenants’ needs were documented.   The Customer 
Service Centre at the Trust and the support workers in the sheltered homes 
were all well-briefed on the needs of residents.   Whilst letters included the 
required legal terms, the Trust tried to provide as much information as possible 
and residents were encouraged to talk to Trust staff regarding any problems. 

If the phone is not answered within five rings, is the call diverted to other
officers?

The Chair noted that the Trust’s publication, Gateway, had informed that 
telephone callers waited an average of 89 seconds before getting through to the 
relevant officer.

Loreen Herzig explained that in the Customer Services team callers were 
directed to the first officer available to take the call.  If the officer was unable to 
answer, another member of staff could pick up and deal with the query.  It was 
possible to request a ‘call back’ and an officer could then ring the caller once 
they were free.

With regard to the 89 seconds waiting time, a service review was currently 
looking at how this time could be reduced.  The Trust was aiming to answer 
queries at the first call.  Rather than answering quickly and then diverting 
through selected automated options, it was hoped that calls could be answered
by the correct officer and consequently achieve call resolution at the first 

35
Page 83



attempt.

Tina Barnard added that the priority for phone calls was to resolve a problem at 
the first call rather than transferring to a number of officers.  One of the primary 
objectives was to ensure that callers used the correct number and were then 
provided with the relevant information.

Are extra members of staff employed at busy times? 

Loreen Herzig replied that a ‘call analysis’ had been conducted and additional
staff were available to answer the phones when the likelihood of a large volume 
of calls was expected such as when service charges letters had been sent out.

The Chair commented that callers would wish to speak to an officer as soon as 
possible and not wait too long; he asked whether it would be possible to check 
how often calls have been abandoned.

Loreen Herzig said that this could be analysed especially since a call-back 
option had been installed.  Monitoring by the Trust could hopefully reduce the 
number of callers who ‘hang up’.

Members referred to the call back option and asked how this system could be 
accessed.  It was noted that many residents found technology a problem to 
them.

Tina Barnard advised that this information was available in the Gateway News 
and added that customer feedback on this matter would be useful.

In response to the Chair's query on how the Trust compared with other 
organisations, Loreen Herzig advised that the Trust had worked with a 
consultant who had experience of a number of housing providers and could 
advise on best practice for Watford.  The Trust would gain insight from Warner 
Brothers on how they dealt with customer service aspects at their venues.

How does the Trust compare with other local housing associations such 
as Thrive? 

Loreen Herzig said that it was not possible to gain a comparison between the 
two housing associations as Thrive had not completed a survey of tenants and 
residents (STAR) satisfaction survey for benchmarking purposes.

Is the Trust aware that some tenants feel intimidated by some of the 
officers?  How is this monitored?

Loreen Herzig explained that when such a problem occurred, the issue was 
investigated and feedback recorded.  The Trust was not aware of any problems. 

Members wished to know whether such issues would be addressed through 
Human Resources and whether a mediation process would be instigated. 

Loreen Herzig advised that where the complainant had experienced a problem, 
feedback would be provided. 

36
Page 84



What process should a complainant follow?

Tina Barnard advised that the complainant should call Customer Services on 
01923 – 209000 or 01923 – 209247 for queries on repairs.  All information was 
available in the tenants’ handbooks and fridge magnets with these numbers had 
also been provided.

Councillor Ian Brown referred to a recent planning application on land owned by 
the Trust.  He advised that almost all residents had been opposed to the 
scheme yet the Trust had not taken their views into consideration.

Gareth Lewis responded that there had been consultation with residents and 
that the original development plans had been altered following feedback.   He 
added that it had been hoped to use a Trust asset to provide accommodation for 
the community.  He advised that the application had had planning officers’ 
recommendation and it was considered that it would be wise to pursue the 
proposal.

What training do new staff receive and are staff trained in diversity
awareness and on how to deal with vulnerable tenants? 

Loreen Herzig said that the Trust understood that tenants had complex needs.
All staff had full induction training to include elements on equality, diversity and 
other needs.  Additional training was also available and all staff were subject to 
monitoring.

Following a question from Councillor Collett regarding services for tenants 
moving to vacated properties, Gareth Lewis advised that a meter reading would 
be taken when a property became void.  The new tenant would then take their 
own meter reading following instructions in the tenants’ handbook.

Councillor Johnson pointed out that the number of the lifeline service had been
discontinued but that this had not been updated on the Trust’s website.

Service Charges:

How much does the Trust expect to raise through the Service Charges?
How much does it cost to implement collection of Service Charges?  Is 
collection cost-effective? 

Tina Barnard said that changes had been made to services for leaseholders.
Staffing had been reduced by one post.  It was anticipated that income to be 
generated in 2014 would be £606,000, greater than the cost of the deleted post.
It should be noted that these charges were for services and not for maintenance 
of properties.

Review of services charges: 

1. Grounds maintenance.  This issue had been considered by the Board in 
July 2013 and it had been acknowledged that it was unfair to charge 
tenants in houses as the Trust was unable to charge non-tenants for 

37
Page 85



grounds maintenance.
2. Affordability.  The maximum charge had been capped at £12 per week; this 

would also be subject to a review. 
3. Accessibility of services.  Tenants were not charged for services they did 
not receive.

Tina Barnard advised that all tenants were given this information.

The figure for expected income has fallen from an anticipated £2.5 million 
to £606,000.  How could this shortfall be explained? 

Tina Barnard advised that it was hoped that costs could be reduced.  For 
example, Tina Barnard explained that the Holywell playground improvements 
would not be recharged.

What would be the impact on the Trust if the Service Charges were
discontinued?

Tina Barnard considered that this was a major concern.   All housing providers
were obliged to reclaim Service Charges in order to cover costs.  The current 
income/ expenditure costs were estimates; if expenditure costs were found to be 
less than the estimate, charges would be reduced in the following year.

Councillor Collett expressed concern that some residents did not realise what
the charges were for. 

Tina Barnard responded that the Trust constantly sought to provide clear 
information.

The Chair pointed out that a number of residents had been charged for services 
they had not accessed.  As an example, some residents had received bills for 
Legionnaires’ Disease testing yet had no water tanks at their homes.

Gareth Lewis responded that more accurate information on properties was now 
held at the Trust and in future only residents with water tanks would be charged.

Would it be possible to produce a comprehensive map which indicated
land and properties owned by the Trust? 

Gareth Lewis advised that records had been examined and areas of land 
measured in order to produce accurate documentation of the Trust’s land and 
property.

Repairs:

In reply to a question from the Chair regarding team leaders in the Repair 
section, Tina Barnard explained that one manager and two team leaders had 
recently started in permanent posts with the Trust and one other was due to 
start shortly.

38
Page 86



Does the Trust consider that enough resources are invested in improving 
properties for their tenants?  Figures show that there are 26 operatives in 
the repair team and a number of  management staff; would more 
operatives create greater satisfaction with repair services? 

Gareth Lewis replied that the management team included planners and team 
leaders who worked to increase productivity and improve systems of working.
There had been significant consultation on reorganising systems.

Is the Trust satisfied that work is sufficiently checked once completed?
How is this carried out? Is there any quality control, a check-list for the 
tenants or is the work checked independently?

In reply to this questions and examples of residents’ problems, Gareth Lewis 
explained aspects of the Repair service. 

Problems with Gas and Water supplies: 
Where services had deteriorated, the contractors had been contacted for 
discussion regarding the quality of their work.  Fewer complaints had been 
received.

Condensation:
Problems with condensation were frequently due to lifestyle. Problems had been 
reduced through educating and supporting tenants. 

Quality Control:
Post inspections were carried out.  Each external contractor should leave a 
feedback form with a post paid envelope.  In addition, the repairs team mailed a 
feedback form to 50% of residents where jobs have been completed; 50% of 
those forms had been returned.

When a resident made a complaint, Trust staff would speak with them and try to 
resolve the problem and prevent any anxiety.  The Trust’s main priorities were: 

1. Getting it right first time
2. Customer Satisfaction
3. To operate efficiently 

The Chair noted that the target for achieving the required result first time was 
75% and that 74.9% had been achieved.  Thrive had achieved 91% from April to 
June 2012 and 88% from April to September 2012.  He asked if there was an 
explanation for this. 

Loreen Herzig replied that the two figures were not, in fact, comparing like-for-
like.

Councillor Connal noted that some areas of Watford had greater problems with 
damp than others.  She asked if it were possible to show on a map where such 
problems occurred.

39
Page 87



Social Enterprise:
Does the Trust employ someone with responsibility for Social Enterprise?
What has the Trust achieved in the area of Social Enterprise, Social
Inclusion, Financial Inclusion, worklessness and Enterprise in the past five 
years?

Gareth Lewis explained that Social Enterprise initiatives had included the Green 
Canteen on the Meriden estate and opportunities for training, work and 
volunteering.  The Cycle Hub provided apprenticeship opportunities associated 
with teaching and mechanical skills. Rides had been organised to promote 
Health and Wellbeing.

The Community Maintenance Team had been provided with no direct costs to 
the Trust; this started with five apprentices and had increased to ten. 

The Jobs at Home scheme, in partnership with Thrive, created 14 jobs and all 
operatives had currently been trained to Level 2. 

What has been achieved through the Youth Opportunities scheme?

Tina Barnard responded that this initiative targeted tenants’ children and 
addressed anti-social behaviour and the perception of an age divide.  The 
scheme had started slowly; meetings were held every three months.

The Trust’s website stated that 70 young people took part initially.  How
many are still engaged? 

Tina Barnard advised that at the most recent meeting, held in early August 
2013,  24 or 25 young people had attended. 

In reply to a question from Councillor Johnson, Tina Barnard explained that a 
budget of £8,000 had been set aside. The Dan Tien initiative had been 
successful and it was hoped to engage with the football club on the Meriden 
estate.

In response to a further query from Councillor Johnson, Tina Barnard advised 
that the £8,000 also covered work dealing with vandalism.

The Chair thanked the staff of the Watford Community Housing Trust and said 
that their answers had assisted with the Task Group’s fact finding work. 

15. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

The Task Group agreed to meet on Tuesday 3 September 2013. 

   Chair
Watford Community Housing Trust Task Group

The meeting started at 7.00 p.m.
and finished at 8.50 p.m.

f 29/08 

40
Page 88



Appendix 5 
WATFORD COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUST TASK GROUP 

3 September  2013 

Present:   Councillor Khan (Chair) 
Councillors Collett, Connal, Johnson and Joynes

Officers: Committee and Scrutiny Support Officer (RW) 

16. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

No apologies had been received. 

17. DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

There were no disclosures of interest. 

18. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 

The minutes of the meeting of 21 August 2013 were submitted and signed. 

19. RECOMMENDATIONS TO PUT FORWARD TO OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

Members discussed the meeting with the Watford Community Housing Trust’s 
representatives and the answers they had received. 

Members agreed that involvement with the community appeared to be a major 
focus of the Trust’s work to the detriment of basic housing services.  The Task 
Group noted that tenants had frequently complained that repairs had not been 
completed and that they had had no feedback slips to record their 
dissatisfaction.

The Task Group then considered the responses from the Trust’s representatives 
and decided on recommendations regarding areas of concern.  These focussed 
on Communication, Service Charges and Repairs and were based on evidence
resulting from interviews with residents and from the survey form on the Repairs 
Service.  The following draft recommendations were proposed: 

! All new tenants should be visited by an officer of the Trust to ensure that 
they are satisfied with their living arrangements 

! Residents to be informed that their neighbourhood teams are available to 
clarify any issues 

! The handbook must be made more user-friendly, updated regularly and 
accessible to all residents 

! Improve clarity in presentation of bills sent to residents ensuring that all 
charges are clearly itemised 

41
Page 89



! Provide a clear process for residents to query any charges with which they 
disagree

! Reduce the waiting time for residents to an ‘industry acceptable’ level.  The 
telephone should be answered within six rings. 

! A free phone number should be introduced for residents to call the Trust 

! The Trust website must be updated daily to ensure its contact details are 
current

! The Trust website must reflect the needs of its tenants and its aims and 
strategies.  The website must be easy to navigate and accessible to all 
residents.

! Staff who communicate with residents must have regular training 

! A clear process needs to be put in place where vulnerable residents are 
recognised and services provided to them to meet their individual needs.

! The process to communicate with vulnerable residents must be clear.  Staff 
should be proactive in dealing with vulnerable residents. 

! Improve the relationship between Councillors and the Trust and to work 
more co-operatively

! Service Charges must be constantly reviewed.

! Service Charges should be itemised for each individual property and items 
clearly defined.

! The ‘first time’ satisfaction rate must be increased substantially 

! A much more vigorous monitoring of contractors by managers must be 
undertaken

! Residents to be positively encouraged to return satisfaction surveys 

! The Trust must be much more accountable to its residents and 
stakeholders

It was agreed that these recommendations would be incorporated into the Task 
Group’s final report with supporting conclusions.

AGREED:

! The Committee and Scrutiny Support Officer to email draft 
recommendation to the Task Group. 

! The Task Group to comment on the recommendations to all other Task 
Group members via email; all comments to be returned to the Committee
and Scrutiny Support Officer by 9 September 2013.

   Chair
Watford Community Housing Trust Task Group

The meeting started at 6.30 p.m.
and finished at 7.50 p.m.

42
Page 90



Appendix 6 

Watford Community Housing Trust Repairs service - Residents’ survey 

* Please circle as appropriate 

1. Are you happy with the Trust’s housing repairs service? 

  YES* / NO*

2. When you call the Trust with a housing issue are you satisfied 
with the way in which your issue is dealt with? 

YES* / NO* 

3. Would you be willing to complete a satisfaction slip once work to 
your home is completed? 

  YES* / NO*

4. Once the service charges are agreed and set do you feel it is 
important for each tenant to receive an individual letter, setting out 
details of what they are paying for? 

YES* / NO*

Please use the box below for any comments you may wish to make

43
Page 91



Page 92



Appendix 7 

Residents Survey – details of responses to questions 

Brief Summary

A total of 30 responses have been received.

Question 1 – 19 out of the 30 responses showed that they were unhappy with the Trust’s 
housing repairs service. 

Q2 23 out of the 30 were not satisfied with the way their issues were dealt with by the 
Housing Trust. 

Q3 24 out of the 30 replied that they would be willing to complete a satisfaction slip. 

Q4 28 of the responders felt that individual letters should be sent to tenants with details of 
their service charge. 

A full breakdown of each question is shown below. 

Question 1 – Are you happy with the Trust’s housing repairs service? 

Yes 6

No 19

No reply 2

Other responses Mostly okay – 2 

Sometimes – 1

Additional comments to
question 1 

Yes – when they keep appointments

Do all own repairs 

Question 2 – When you call the Trust with a housing issue are you satisfied with the 
way in which your issue is dealt with?

Yes 4

No 23

No reply 1

Other responses Sometimes – 1 

Additional comments to
question 2 

45
Page 93



Question 3 – Would you be willing to complete a satisfaction slip once work to your
home is completed? 

Yes 24

No 4

No reply 1

Other responses Not applicable – 1

Additional comments to
question 3 

Question 4 – Once the service charges are agreed and set do you feel it is important
for each tenant to receive an individual letter, setting out details of what they are 
paying for? 

Yes 28

No 0

No reply 2

Other responses None

Additional comments to
question 4 

46
Page 94



Appendix 8 

Residents Survey – details of responses to questions 

Additional Comments

Complaints:
All complaints fall on deaf ears
One member of staff was ‘very rude’
Repairs team are rude and one member of staff was ‘extremely rude’
Problems with damp and asbestos, ‘very poor quality’
Varied degree of satisfaction
Tenants no longer ‘at the heart of the Trust’
There should be a scrutiny committee
2-bed flat modified for disability and then asked to pay bedroom tax
Tenants are frightened of complaining
Response time is poor and main switchboard worse now than previously
No inspectors to look at work
Complaints procedure is not working
Residents are scared and would like a permanent manager
Need a permanent manager in order to feel safe

Compliments:
Sheltered accommodation is good quality
People in Clarendon Road (Trust offices?) are good

Services charges:
Tenants paying for a facility which everyone uses
This is ‘grey’ area – original letter did not sufficiently explain what charges are for
The Trust listens to tenants i.e. service charges to be phased in over 3 years
Charges not itemised
Asked why home owners do not have to pay service charges
Disabled people are discriminated against
Payments on statements do not reflect payments made
Would like payments to be itemised
Takes a minimum of 3 to 5 days before accounts are credited
Should be itemised
Increase in charges from £450 to £660 in one year
Tenants are charged for services which they do not need
Charges need to be sorted out
There should be individual letters explaining the breakdown of charges

Discretionary payments:
No-one knows what is happening
People are ‘upset’ at paying Ground Maintenance charges

47
Page 95



Communication with tenants:
Trust uses a variety of communication methods to keep tenants aware of issues Managers 
seem to be ‘out of their depth’ and do not want to listen 
‘No clarity’ from Trust
Lack of information on: Board membership and home improvement matters
Wants relevant info rather than ‘crosswords and recipes’ – in newsletter presumably?
‘Never’ consulted on improvements
Lack of communication
‘Not specific enough. It can be very complicated . . not easy to understand’
Difficult to make the Trust understand the urgency of repairs
Trust does not ring back after message left
Letters are too complicated
No response received
No updates received
No confirmation phone calls or emails received
Residents feels the Trust are not always polite on the phone 

Repair services:
Repairs staff take the whole call and make appointment at this point or will call back
Repair to sink unsatisfactory
Waited 7 days for electric heater
Had new doors and windows – all fine
All repairs done competently and within acceptable time frame
Believes tenants should pay for services received
Trust does not complete jobs
Rang for 45 minutes before call was answered
Staff did not seem qualified
Flooring inadequate
Faulty property and issues not resolved prior to tenancy starting
Service very poor
Complaints not resolved
Not happy with response – failed appointments
Does all their own repairs so that ‘décor does not get ruined’
Mostly ok
Kitchen renewal – 5 visits
Radiator in communal area has never worked despite being reported
3 weeks to repair bin storage / tap repaired within 24 hours
Satisfaction with repairs depends on staff dealing with issues: 35% good / 65% poor
Satisfied with repairs when appointments are kept
Satisfaction slip should be filled in when work completed
Not happy with support workers – they are not helpful enough
Happier with colour choices and type of repair
Accommodating in getting a disabled shower refitted
Contractors did not give good service and were unhelpful regarding colour schemes
Kitchen refit resulted in less space in kitchen
Another company did good job decorating and repairing ceiling
Repairs take too long
Previous contractors very good and clean, current contractors ‘rubbish’
Repair work on-going for some time but has not resulted in any improvement
When a response is received the work is ‘sometimes’ good
Work on windows and doors not done properly

48
Page 96



Appendix 9 
Cabinet

18 February 2013 

Present: Mayor Dorothy Thornhill (Chair & Housing Portfolio Holder) 
Cllr D Scudder (Vice Chair &  Environmental Services

 Portfolio Holder)
Cllr Crout (Leisure & Community Services Portfolio Holder)
 Cllr Sharpe (Planning & Legal & Property Portfolio Holder) 
 Cllr Watkin (Finance & Shared Services Portfolio Holder)

Also present:
Councillors Bell and Meerabux.

71 INDEPENDENT AUDIT OF WATFORD COMMUNITY HOUSING TRUSTS DELIVERY OF 
THE STOCK TRANSFER PROMISES TO TENANTS 

As part of the transfer of the Council’s housing stock, a promise had been made to tenants 
about improvements to their homes and safeguards for their future security. The promise 
contained a number of individual statements with the overriding statement that everything 
within the promises document, “Same people, more resources, better service”, would be 
delivered within five years i.e. 9 September 2012.

At the request of the Council, Watford Community Housing Trust (WCHT) commissioned 
an independent audit of its delivery of the promises. Cabinet received a report providing 
details of the promises and the success in delivering them.

The Mayor commented that an independent audit had been absolutely the right thing to do 
and the result was a good robust report which she invited the Executive Director, Services, 
to introduce. 

The Executive Director stressed that the report focussed solely on the promises and that 
this had been necessary to enable the Council to provide formal notification on the delivery 
of those promises to the HCA. 

The main thrust of the promises was to deliver the decent homes standard and this had 
been met. She commented that, whilst there had been a few communications issues, 
working relationships between the Trust and the Council had been good. The Trust had 
now produced its next business plan “Everyone Matters” and copies of their Community 
Development Strategy were available at the meeting. 

She went on to draw Members’ attention to areas where the Trust had developed in areas 
beyond what was promised. These achievements were outlined in paragraph 3.7 of the 
report.

Councillor Bell said he was pleased with what the Trust had achieved but added that this 
had also been expedited through councillors’ casework. He added that he had some 
doubts about the success of tenant participation and that there was a need to keep this in 
mind. He also hoped that communication between the Trust and councillors could be 
maintained and continue to improve. 

49
Page 97



The Mayor concurred with the councillor’s view about consultation, referring specifically to 
an occasion when councillors were refused attendance at a meeting. It was important to 
keep stressing the need for councillors to be involved. In response to the councillor’s point 
about tenant participation, she accepted that this could be quite challenging.

She added that the Council could never have achieved the standard achieved by the Trust 
and also the added value obtained in areas where it had gone above and beyond what 
was expected.

Councillor Scudder welcomed the taking over of community centres at Leavesden Green 
and the Harebreaks and turning them into Community Hubs which would re-vitalise the 
areas and bring money in. 

Councillor Sharpe endorsed the Mayor’s comments regarding the achievements by the 
Trust especially the amount of work done to meet the decent homes standard which, he 
said, could never have been met by the Council. It had resulted in better facilities for the 
worse off and more vulnerable residents of Watford. He concluded by stating that the 
decisions to give tenants the choice had been clearly vindicated as had the choice made 
by the tenants themselves to go for the Gateway option.

Councillor Watkin endorsed this view and commented that the Trust had been successful 
in creating an holistic approach to looking after Watford’s housing tenants. 

The Mayor thanked the Trust and said she hoped that the Trust and the Council would 
continue to work co-operatively in the future. 

RESOLVED

that Cabinet notes the report and instructs officers to provide official notification of 
completion which can be forwarded to the HCA.

50
Page 98


	Agenda
	5 Outstanding Actions and Questions
	Appendix 1 - Temp accommodation response Sept 2013
	Appendix 2 - Graffiti response
	Appendix 3 - affordable housing threshold
	Appendix 4 - Local Authority Mortgage Scheme

	6 Update on the Council's Performance Indicators and Measures - end of Quarter 1 (April-June) 2013/14
	Appendix A  Watford BC Measures of Performance Progress report as of end of Q1 2013.14

	7 Previous Review Update: Services for the Deceased
	8 Executive Decision Progress Report
	10 Watford Community Housing Trust Task Group - Final report
	Final (draft) report


